efg

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 18TH JUNE, 2015

7.30 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA

To all members of the Environment and Neighbourhood Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair
Councillors:
Ex Officio
Substitutes:

Councillor Jill Whitehead
Councillor Nighat Piracha
Manuel Abellan, Adrian Davey, Richard Marston, Patrick McManus,
Steve Penneck, Tony Shields, Paul Wingfield and Hanna Zuchowska
Councillor Ruth Dombey
Councillors Jean Crossby, Tim Crowley, Neil Garratt, Miguel Javelot
and Joyce Melican

Note
This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the
invitation of the Chair of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you
wish to submit representations on a proposal contained within the reports to this
agenda please submit a request via Committee Services three working days before
the meeting date.
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s web site.
Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Civic Offices
St Nicholas Way
SUTTON
SM1 1EA
9 June 2015

Enquiries to: Victoria Lower, Senior Business Support Officer (Democratic Services).
tel: 020 8770 4640 Email: victoria.lower@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until
10am on the third working day after the day of the meeting. Any four members of the
Council may notify the Chief Executive by then if they require a decision to be
reviewed by the full Council at its next meeting on 13 July 2015. Please contact the
Committee Services Officer named on the Agenda frontsheet for further information.

AGENDA

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

3.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING (Pages 3 - 6)
To approve as a correct record of the meeting on 19 March 2015.

4.

SUSTAINABILITY SERVICE REVIEW (Pages 7 - 28)
This report provides a review of the current offer and options for the future
scope and strategic direction of the council’s sustainability approach.

5.

FUTURE PROVISION OF THE NEIGHBOURHOOD RECYCLING CENTRES
(Pages 29 - 34)
The Council has implemented significant improvements over recent years to
the kerbside recycling service which means that residents are now able to
recycle mixed dry recyclables at home. This report therefore considers the
options for the future provision of the Neighbourhood Recycling Centres
(NRCs), with a recommendation to remove the mixed recycling banks from the
sites.

6.

SUTTON'S LOCAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY - ADOPTION
AND PUBLICATION PROPOSALS (Pages 35 - 64)
The Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy outlines our priorities and
provides a delivery plan to manage risk over the next six years. Our action plan
will feed into the Environment Agency’s Thames Flood Risk Management Plan
(set for publication in 2015).

2

7.

RELEASE OF CAPITAL FUNDING FOR HIGHWAYS MAINTENANCE
PROGRAMME 2015/16 AND UPDATE ON PROCUREMENT OF HIGHWAYS
AND LIGHTING CONTRACTS (Pages 65 - 74)
The Planned Carriageway and Footway Maintenance Works Programme is
drawn up to address the more important maintenance requirements of roads in
the Borough through a prioritisation process and this report seeks approval to
incur capital expenditure for the roll out of the programme in 2015/16. The
report also updates on progress regarding the re-procurement of the highways
and street lighting contracts and the basis of the agreed extension of these
existing contracts, as agreed at the January Environment and Neighbourhoods
Committee.

8.

BUSINESS CASE FOR SHARING A) HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC
MANAGEMENT AND B) REGULATORY SERVICES WITH THE ROYAL
BOROUGH OF KINGSTON (Pages 75 - 84)
This report summarises the business case and the rationale for shared
services for highways, traffic management and regulatory services between
Sutton and Kingston and the reorganisation of these services into an integrated
structure.

9.

BELMONT CPZ REVIEW (Pages 85 - 86)
This report reviews the Belmont CPZ one year after the implementation of new
hours of operation and changes to Blue Badge entitlement that brought it into
line with similar zones across London.

10.

ANY URGENT ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE
CHAIR

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Annex

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1
Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Page 2

Agenda Annex

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
19 March 2015

ENVIRONMENT AND NEIGHBOURHOOD COMMITTEE
19 March 2015 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:
(*Absent)

Councillor Jill Whitehead (Chair), Councillor Nighat Piracha (Vice
Chair) and Councillors Kevin Burke, *Colin Hall, Patrick
McManus, Steve Penneck, *Hamish Pollock, Tony Shields, Paul
Wingfield and Hanna Zuchowska.

ATTENDED AS Councillor Manuel Abellan
SUBSTITUTE:
32.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATIONS OF SUBSTITUTES

Apologies were received from Councillors Colin Hall and Hamish Pollock.
Councillor Manuel Abellan substituted in Councillor Colin Hall’s place.
33.

MINUTES

Minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 2015 were agreed as a correct record
and signed by the Chair.
34.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

Councillor Steve Penneck declared an interest in Item 6 (Award of preferred bidder
status for the provision of Household Reuse and Recycling Centre at Kimpton Park
Way through the South London Waste Partnership) as his daughter works for the
South London Waste Partnership.
35.

ROADS TASK FORCE - UPDATE

The Committee considered a report on the Mayor of London’s Roads Task Force
(RTF) review which proposed a new roads classification system. Transport for
London (TfL) had advised all London Boroughs to start work on classifying their
highway network according to the RTF nine street types. Members were asked to
agree draft street type classifications for Sutton.
The proposed intervention priorities outlined within the report would support better
the “movement” and “place” functions for road users, and it was felt that changes to
classifications in the future would be assisted by street type maps.
Officers confirmed that they did work with neighbouring boroughs on congestion
issues which crossed borough boundaries, such as within Worcester Park (Royal
Borough of Kingston on Thames).
Members suggested that it would beneficial for some classifications not to be used
within Sutton, as they were more relevant to Inner London Boroughs (i.e. the three
City classifications). Officers commented that Transport for London (TfL) had not
been clear as to the effect of the classifications. However, it had been implied that
1

Agenda Item 3

Page 4

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
19 March 2015

funding decisions would be based on the classifications in future. At present, the
Council was leading the way with implementing the Roads Task Force project, which
it was hoped would reflect well in future funding bids.
Officers agreed to reconsider the classification of Hackbridge following the increased
emphasis on ‘place’ with the Heart of Hackbridge scheme. However, it was
recognised that some places could have both a “place” and “movement” function,
and projects could consider both aspects. Beddington Lane was a priority for the
“movement” function and the Council was lobbying TfL to change its criteria for
major schemes to allow industrial areas to be considered. Improvements were being
made to Beddington Lane, as and when funds became available.
Resolved:
1. That the draft ‘existing street types’ classifications contained in Appendix B of
the report be approved for consultation with relevant stakeholders.
2. That the proposed approach to highway scheme priorities contained in
Section 4 of the report, and delegated authority to the Executive Head of
Commissioning to develop an outline programme of proposed schemes
based on Transport for London’s Road Task Force guidance be approved.
3. That the Sustainable Transport Task & Finish Group consider the Transport
for London’s Road Task Force guidance and the implications for Sutton once
published.
36.

SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT STRATEGY

The Committee considered a report on the results of the public consultation on the
Council’s draft Sustainable Transport Strategy and the proposed changes to the
document in response to the comments received.
The report further outlined the council’s intention to commission a new borough
Cycling Delivery Strategy to support the Sustainable Transport Strategy.
In response to questions, officers commented that it was desirable that 20mph
zones should be self-enforcing through traffic calming measures, as it was not
possible for the Police to enforce all areas due to resourcing constraints. Sutton’s
response to TfL’s Roads Task Force initiative would be able to assist in identifying
areas for possible 20mph zones and the appropriate traffic calming measures which
were safe for cyclists also.
Future transport policy consultations would seek the views of younger residents
more, through the Youth Parliament and other similar organisations, given that this
age group are heavy users of public transport and are more likely to be pedestrians.
Members stressed that it was important that the smaller S buses were maintained on
the side roads and “hail & ride” options kept along the length of their routes.
Members also felt that it was important that appropriate public transport was
available for orbital journey patterns (such as the existing X26 express bus),
including for cross Borough commuters. This should be an identified investment
2

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
19 March 2015

priority in representations made by the Council to national and regional government,
and in partnership with neighbouring boroughs.
An update on the situation for a possible extension of the tram to Sutton was given
to members, and the Mayor of London was expected to make further
announcements on his priorities by the end of 2015.
Members noted how important it was for schools and businesses to have actionable
travel plans, with the increase in population, and programme of school expansions.
Members asked for representations to be made to the train operating
companies/Network Rail in regard to disruptions at London Bridge which was
effecting reliability on local train services.
Resolved:
1. That the proposed changes to the Sustainable Transport Strategy be
approved.
2. That delegated authority to the Executive Head of Economic Development,
Planning and Sustainability, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee to
approve any final changes to the Strategy and its subsequent publication be
approved.
3. That the commissioning and consultation on a draft Cycling Delivery Strategy
be approved and that the Sustainable Transport Strategy Task and Finish
Group oversee the production and consultation of this strategy, and consider
general traffic calming measures across the borough.
37.
AWARD OF PREFERRED BIDDER STATUS FOR THE PROVISION OF
THE HOUSEHOLD REUSE AND RECYCLING CENTRE (HRRC) AT KIMPTON
PARK WAY THROUGH THE SOUTH LONDON WASTE PARTNERSHIP (SLWP)
The Committee considered a report which sought approval for the selection of Veolia
ES (UK) Limited as the preferred bidder for the provision of the Household Reuse
and Recycling Centres currently managed by the four South London Waste
Partnership boroughs.
An innovative feature of the new contract would be a new Reuse and Recycling
Shop at Kimpton, for which an operator would be sought. This would help to boost
rates of recycling.
Technology would be used to track trends in usage of Kimpton Park Way, which
could enable the Council to provide details of quieter times to visit for the public. The
tracking system would also be used to ensure that the site was not being used for
unauthorised commercial waste. However, if it was found that a business case could
be established to take commercial waste at the site, then this would be considered in
the future.

3

Agenda Item 3

Page 6

Environment and Neighbourhood Committee
19 March 2015

Resolved:
1. That the award of preferred bidder status be given to Veolia ES (UK) Limited
for the provision of the Household Reuse and Recycling Centre at Kimpton
Park Way for a period of seven years with the option to extend for a further
seven years. This follows the recommendation from the Joint Waste
Committee on 17 February 2015.
2. That SITA UK Limited be appointed as the Reserve Bidder, following the
recommendation from the Joint Waste Committee on 17 February 2015
3. That following fine tuning discussions with the preferred bidder, delegated
authority to the Strategic Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, in
consultation with the Chair of Environment and Neighbourhood Committee to
authorise the London Borough of Croydon to award the contract to Veolia ES
(UK) Limited be approved.
The meeting ended at 9.00 pm
Chair:
Date:

4

Page 7

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 4

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee
Sustainability Service Review

Date: 18 June 2015

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Borough Wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Andrea Crump, Sustainability Manager, 020 8770 6379
Eleanor Purser, Executive Head of Development, Planning and
Sustainability, 020 8770 6038
 A Green Council
 A Smart Council
Open
Date:

22 May 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

The administration has a strong and enduring commitment to proactive action on advancing the
sustainability agenda. This is manifest in the council’s Corporate Plan 2014/15 – 2017/18 which
includes the objective for Sutton to be London’s most sustainable suburb, and includes the
delivery of the One Planet Sutton targets as a priority action. The council nonetheless needs to
review its sustainability strategy in light of the requirement to save £40m over the next 4 years.

1.2

This report provides a review of the current offer and options for the future scope and strategic
direction of the council’s sustainability approach. The recommended option ensures the council
can re-endorse its sustainability vision to deliver a sustainable Sutton where:









1.3

Community owned renewable energy schemes are commonplace,
A district heating network provides cheaper, cleaner heat,
Energy saving behavioural change is driven by grass roots action
Sustainable transport is at the heart of our growth aspirations
Waste sent to landfill is drastically reduced
Communities are involved in food growing and a locally grown food brand is available in
shops
Improvements to habitats and green spaces mean an improved environment for residents
and nature
The council will be open and accountable for action on environmental performance and will
demonstrate leadership amongst its peers.

To support this the paper sets out organisational recommendations which streamlines the One
Planet Sutton targets to focus limited budgets where they can achieve innovation and cost
saving benefits to the Council, its partners and residents e.g. community owned renewable

Agenda Item 4

Page 8

energy schemes. It recommends that resourcing for environmental risk management is focused
on the areas of greatest legal and compliance risk rather than through the Eco-Management
and Audit Scheme (EMAS) audit regime.
2.

Recommendations

2.1

Endorsement of Option A as delivery model for the future structure and strategic direction of the
sustainability team and the One Planet Sutton (OPS) programme.

2.2

Endorsement of the technical amendments to the OPS targets.

2.3

Agree priority OPS targets which will receive proactive monitoring and support from the
sustainability team.

2.4

Delegation of future minor amendments to OPS targets to the OPS board, in consultation with
the Chair of the Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee.

2.5

Endorsement of the withdrawal from EMAS by Sutton council, and subsequent replacement by
service-led responsibility for environmental risk management.

3.

Background

3.1

The council committed to One Planet Living in 2009, creating a set of challenging sustainability
targets up to 2050. One Planet Living is an approach developed by Bioregional which aims to
enable people to live happy, healthy lives within the natural limits of the planet. Sutton council’s
commitment to adopt the ten principles of One Planet Living for the borough is known as One
Planet Sutton. As an accredited partner the council must commit to a set of Common
International Targets (CITs) and make continual progress across all themes, but the number of
local targets adopted is discretionary.

3.2

In October 2013 a revised set of over 70 targets across 5 core themes were adopted following
approval by Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee. The targets identify 2017, 2025 and
2050 ambitions. It was noted that a number of targets were dependent on resources. OPS
targets were integrated into the Eco-Management and Audit Scheme (EMAS) so that all targets
were monitored through an annual audit by external assessors.

3.3

Interim progress on targets is overseen by the Sustainability Team and monitored by an OPS
board which comprises senior officers from across the Council.

3.4

The annual budget of the Sustainability Team in 2014/15 was £180,700 (excluding central
support costs). A summary of current service provision is provided in Appendix A.

3.5

Progress towards targets during 2013-14 was published within the OPS Progress Report
(http://www.sutton.gov.uk/downloads/file/1163/ops_progress_report_141201) in December
2014. Key achievements include a 10% reduction in CO2 from council buildings since 2010-11,
a 5.3% reduction in household waste since 2009-10, the completion of a £1.6m flood alleviation
scheme, an 11% reduction of CO2 from council fleet emissions. Sutton is rated 7th in country,
and first in London for commitment to Eco schools. To date 6 OPS 2017 targets have already

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

been achieved, and progress towards OPS targets have saved the council a minimum of £2.5m
including over £1.9m from energy bills, and £17,000 from simple water saving measures. Work
towards One Planet Sutton targets has also levered in funding of over £8.5m external funding
since 2010.
4.

Issues

4.1

Over the past year the council has worked with a wide range of stakeholders to draft action
plans for OPS 2017 targets. This process identified technical amendments to targets which
were required for a number of reasons e.g. government policy changes, improved baseline
data, or review of Council resources. This review has recommended a consolidated set of 71
targets (Appendix B). The amendments were endorsed by the OPS Board subject to approval
by Committee and Bioregional have confirmed that they continue to address all the CITs.

4.2

The process also confirmed the requirement for substantial funding to achieve a number of the
targets. OPS is a whole borough approach to sustainability and in order to meet all the targets
action is needed across all sectors of the borough. However analysis has shown that over one
third of the sustainability team’s time is required to monitor performance of OPS targets within
the EMAS framework rather than deliver projects or act as an advocate of change.

4.3

In the current financial environment, the council will need to prioritise key areas where focused
action can bring about the biggest benefits and empower residents and partner organisations to
change behaviours to deliver sustainability. The approach should also recognise that the holistic
approach to sustainability e.g. the focus on well-being has now been mainstreamed within
Council policy, and collaboration across council teams (e.g. planning) has ensured sustainability
aspirations are embedded within business as usual.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

Appendix C sets out four options for a revised sustainability service. These are:
 Option A: Streamlined One Planet Sutton Strategy, Delivery and Monitoring Service
2 FTE
Delivers OPS programme through key projects, monitoring and reporting progress
Facilitates delivery though external partners, support for internal teams and sourcing
additional funding
 Option B: CO2 emissions reduction service
1 FTE
Delivers borough wide CO2 reduction projects
Provides policy, and support on non corporate CO2 matters only
 Option C: Sustainability policy and monitoring service
1 FTE
Provides council strategy and policy on council environmental issues
Monitors corporate environmental performance

Agenda Item 4

Page 10

 Option D: No sustainability service
5.2

To provide further context for the options review, a comparison of Sutton’s sustainability team
and other London Borough sustainability teams is provided in Appendix D.

5.3

The options were presented to OPS Board on 5 March 2015 which agreed to support the
recommendation to E&N Committee that Option A be taken forward.

5.4

All options include removal of the council’s EMAS. EMAS is a framework for performance
monitoring and environmental risk management. The council has been accredited since 1996,
but a review has shown that only 4 other UK councils still hold accreditation. A review of how
this function could be replaced by the council has been undertaken in partnership with internal
audit and heads of service for relevant areas. It concluded that ownership of environmental risk
issues can be taken on by the relevant service areas (Appendix E).

5.5

All options include removal of the Eco schools budget, as the objectives of the Eco school
officer post have been successfully achieved.

5.6

Option A provides continuation of overarching sustainability strategy, monitoring and
commissioning/delivery of projects by the sustainability team, and continuation of One Planet
Sutton. Key focus areas are detailed in Appendix F and would include proactive management of
32 targets relating to borough wide energy reduction, corporate waste, local food, sustainable
commissioning and procurement, and support to other teams on issues such as waste,
transport, flooding, water reduction. These have been identified for their environmental
importance, the potential to save resources and costs, and the added value which the council
can deliver .The detailed rationale for each target is provided in Appendix F.

5.7

Other targets will be maintained as aspirations should additional funding become available but
will not be actively supported by the Sustainability Team, including improving biodiversity at
SHP estates and assisting households with adaptation to climate change.

5.8

Under Option A there would be a reduction in officer time spent on target monitoring and an
increased focus on delivery of innovative environmental improvements, partnership working,
and identification of funding opportunities. Indicative projects include an online reuse system for
council and partners, a community renewable energy scheme, a project to assist in greening the
supply chain, and improvements to recycling in council buildings. Communications to ensure
residents are informed of progress against OPS targets, and to motivate further behavioural
change will form an important part of the service.

5.9

The framework at Appendix F includes several new targets to ensure monitoring of key
environmental areas that were previously monitored via EMAS, or which provide improved
insight into direction of travel against 2025 targets. An annual progress report will be published,
independently reviewed by Bioregional, which will also refer to projects more broadly which
contribute to OPS objectives but which are monitored by other means. Bioregional would also
benchmark Sutton’s progress against key sustainability indicators such as local authority CO2
emissions. Other OPS targets not included in Appendix F would remain, but without active
monitoring and they would be reviewed in 2017.

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

5.10 Bioregional have indicated this approach would enable the council to continue to be an
endorsed One Planet Sutton Borough.
5.11 Under option A no staff redundancies are envisaged. Implementation of the new staff structure
is anticipated from 1 January 2016.
5.12 Option B is not recommended because its focus on CO2 monitoring would not support an
overarching sustainability programme nor endorsement as One Planet Living partner.
5.13 Option C is not recommended as it would only provide support and advice to other teams within
the council on sustainability issues and it is unlikely to provide the momentum and leadership
needed to support the Council’s sustainability ambitions.
5.14 Option D is not recommended because it would result in the removal of specialist environmental
support within the council and the ability to deliver One Planet Sutton targets.
5.15 Further future revisions may be required to OPS targets (e.g. for changes to government policy).
It is therefore also recommended the OPS Board is given delegated powers to approve minor
amendments to sustainability targets in consultation with the Chair of Environment and
Neighbourhoods Committee.
6.

Impacts and Implications

6.1

Financial

6.2

The direct financial savings of the service review options are detailed in appendix C, and
summarised below, this excludes central support costs.
Option
A
B
C
D

Total
budget(£)
96,000
63,330
33,660
0

Total saving from
2014/15 budget (£)
84,700
117,040
147,040
180,700

6.3

The savings are estimates, and will not be finalised until consultation on a proposed restructure
and subsequent role evaluation has been undertaken in accordance with the council’s
reorganisation policy. It will also be subject to changes set out in the People Plan.

6.4

The savings projected do not include other cost savings to the council which the sustainability
team provides e.g. the previous installation of a new recycling system in buildings saved the
council an estimated £16,500. Corporate energy behaviour change schemes run by the team
save a minimum of £4,000 a year. A reuse scheme for equipment could save the council at
least £50,000.

Page 12

Agenda Item 4

6.5

Legal

6.6

The cessation of EMAS will remove the current system which assures that teams across the
council are complying with environmental legislation. Discussion with internal audit, and relevant
service heads has illustrated that environmental risk can be managed without EMAS. An
alternative approach will be implemented and service heads will take ownership for legal
compliance, and where there is a higher risk for the council, internal audit will continue to
conduct spot checks to monitor compliance (Appendix E).

6.7

Other issues

6.8

The options set out in this paper rely on data inputs from other teams. The sustainability team
acts as a hub, driving sustainability performance across the council. Monitoring and delivery
requires input from all teams across the council but in particular: asset management,
sustainable transport, waste, facilities management, biodiversity, flood risk, strategic planning,
procurement, environmental health, and commissioning support teams. Loss of staff as part of
wider changes in such teams may impact the sustainability team’s ability to deliver. This will
need to be monitored through the sustainability impact assessment within all committee reports
and through the OPS Board.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix Letter
A
B
C
D
E
F

Title
Current Sustainability Service Provision
OPS 2017 targets requiring technical amendments
Options for Future Sustainability Service Provision
Comparable London Borough Sustainability Services
Eco-Management and Audit Scheme Review
Summary of Key OPS and Sustainability Team Priorities and
Targets to 2017/18

Background Documents
None.
Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 22 May 2015
Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Christine Little
Chris Warner

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

Appendix A
Current Sustainability Service Provision
Sustainability Team Areas of Activity
Service Area
1 Sustainability strategy, policy creation,
advice and guidance
2

Performance monitoring and
environmental risk

3

Investigating and applying for funding

4
5

Delivery/commissioning/project
management of environmental
improvement activities
Communications/engagement

6

Partnerships

7

Other (e.g. corporate/management
activities)

DECC funding, assisting other
teams eg HLF bids, circular
economy
Community energy scheme, Eco
schools, domestic energy projects
OPS Ambassadors scheme, energy
road shows, council energy
campaigns
Food forum, Bioregional , EcoLocal

Total budget per Cost Centre
Cost Centre
1004 Ecoschools
1006 Sustainability
1009 EMAS

Examples
OPS programme policy and
strategy, fuel poverty strategy,
contract assistance
EMAS accreditation, OPS
accreditation

Total (£)
35,200
103,300
42,200

Page 14

Agenda Item 4

Appendix B
OPS 2017 targets requiring technical amendments
Key
Bold text = target wording amended
Ref

2017 Target Amendment

Cutting Carbon Emissions
ZCB 1.5
All new major residential and non-residential
Aii
buildings to be Zero Carbon in Hackbridge from
2011 onwards.

Rationale for target changes

Not practical to request for
individual developments.

ZCB 1.5
Aiii

40% reduction in CO2 emissions for new major
Not practical to request for
residential and major non-residential developments individual developments.
(compared to Building Regulations 2010).

ST 1.1 A

Increase the percentage of Council staff
commuting by sustainable transport from a
baseline of 42% 48% in 2011, to 52.5%60% in
2017.
Increase the percentage of residents using
sustainable transport from a baseline of 48% in
2010 to 50% by 2017.
Increase the use of sustainable transport from
a 2009/10 - 2011/12 average baseline of:
1% cycling to 2.2% cycling
28% walking to 29.6% walking
16% public transport to 17.6% by 2017

ST 1.4 A

Cutting waste
ZW 1.3 A Reduce waste from households by 5% per
household (equivalent to 4,000 3,854 tonnes) by
2017 .

Brought in line with sustainable
transport definition for residents
travel.
Baseline and targets brought in
line with TfL annual reporting,
borough’s STS and LIP.

Baseline had previously been
reported using a rounded figure
rather than exact figure which is
now included.

ZW 1.4 A

Increase the borough wide household recycling
rate to 40% by 2017.

More technically correct wording
suggested. This target is
monitored via household waste
collection rates, not all waste
collected within the borough.

ZW 1.7 B

At least 70% of waste by weight generated by
collected by the council from commercial
operations to be reused, composted or recycled by
2025 with an aspiration to move ahead of this
target and be closer to 90%.

More technically correct wording
suggested.

Page 15

Agenda Item 4

ZW 1.8 B

At least 95% of waste by weight generated by
No current system available to
council construction and demolition projects to be track waste generated by all
reclaimed or recycled by 2025.
construction and demolition sites
across the borough.

LSM 1.3
A

By 2017, all new major council led developments
should use: 10% recycled content by value, 15%
local materials by weight, 95% timber should be
FSC certified (or equivalent).

Valuing our natural environment
LSF 1.1
Achieve a maximum score of 7 in the list of
A
London Boroughs showing leadership in food
locally by 2017 (London Food Link – Good Food
For London).

Beyond council control to require
this of non council led
developments

Maximum score in Good Food for
London has been altered. This
may change again as more
criteria is added to the report
therefore advice is to remove
figure from target.

LSF 1.6
A

Economic renewal and development to discuss
with local businesses how these objectives
may be realised and Develop projects and
agreements with local businesses to promote
sustainable food by 2017

Previous target included
superfluous wording.

LSF 1.7
A

Promote a local land swap or land match
system to partner those with garden space with
those seeking a place to grow foor by 2017
Enable an increase in people to take part in
growing their own food locally by 2017

Target changed to provide more
overarching approach to food
growing

SW 1.2 A

Assist 6,000 households in reusing and reducing
their water usage by 2017. 47% of homes have
water meters fitted which is known to reduce
demand for water.
Water company to promote free water saving
devises to households via website and
promotion at borough events.

Superfluous wording removed.

SW 1.3 A

Maximum loss of water 24.5ML by 2017; achieved
through consistent repair and maintenance of
water supply infrastructure.

Target changed to reflect
changes to Sutton and East
Surrey Water targets.

Supporting Healthy communities

Agenda Item 4

HH 1.3 B

Page 16

Design services with well-being in mind and
encourage residents to participate in activities that
increase health and happiness. Activities will have:
• A method for monitoring and improving both
community and employee wellbeing and
satisfaction.
• Evidence of embedding wellbeing into the design
of services across major service areas.
• Community involvement and participation in
shaping well-being.

Supporting the local economy
SLE 1.2
The Council will promote the Opportunity Sutton
A
programme and specifically the 'matching skills
with demand' project to reduce the inequality gap,
seek to reduce Not in Education, Employment or
Training (NEET) figures to 3% 3.6% and NEET not
known 7% 6% by 2017 (current baseline is 4.5%
and 10% respectively in January 2012)

Employee wellbeing already
detailed in target HH 1.1B.

figures revised to support latest
baseline

SLE 1.5
A

Reduce Job Seekers Allowance in 16-24 to 3%
by 2017 (3.6% in Jan 2013).

Repetition of target SLE 1.4

SLE 1.6
A

25% of residents to be 'work ready', through
training at schools and colleges by 2017.

No measure of assessment
available for monitoring of target .

SLE 1.7
A

25% growth in people employed in the Green
Economy by 2017, compared to 2011 (current
baseline is 3914 people from Innovas/GLA
Study). Facilitate the creation of new green
industry and renewable infrastructure in Sutton
by 2017.
25% growth in Green Businesses by 2017,
compared to 2011 (current baseline is 209
businesses from Innovas/GLA Study).

No existing dataset for monitoring
this target. The GLA study was
not comprehensive and is not
being repeated. New wording
suggested.

SLE 1.9
A

Sutton ranked in top 7 of London Boroughs in
terms of the amount of Green Businesses by
2017 (currently 11th).

Now encompassed in 1.7A

SLE 1.10
A

By 2017, 25% increase in attendance to local
committee meetings in the area as part of the
Neighbourhoods, Localities and Public Realm
Projects. Baseline set at first committee
meetings.

Target does not necessarily
illustrate contribute to aim of CIT.
For example, attendance at
committee could be a sign of poor
council performance.

SLE 1.8
A

Now encompassed in 1.7A

Page 17

Agenda Item 4

SLE 1.11
A

5% reduction in percentage of people saying
they would like to have more of a say in what
the council is doing by 2017 (2011 baseline;
17% MORI).

Target is a repetition of 1.12A

SLE 1.12
A

SLE 1.12A Increase the number of residents
believing that they can influence council run
services in the area to 50% by 2017 (2011
baseline; 41% MORI).

Wording rearranged to read more
clearly

SLE 1.13
A

SLE 1.13A All reports to committee and
Corporate Management Team will include
consideration of sustainability impacts core
impacts assessment as follows:
Core impacts:
Financial (must be considered)
Legal (must be considered)
Community (including safety, localism, public
health)
One Planet Living
Equality Impact Assessment
The Council has a number of projects in place
to improve fairness including work on Decent
Homes, ECO and Green Deal, Big London
Energy Change,
Warm Rooms, Fuel Poverty and favourable
fees and charges for disabled and low income
groups.
Ensure Fair trade borough status is
maintained. Council to influence Fair Trade in
the borough, Council to buy 50% of
purchasable Fair Trade products; Council to
promote Fair Trade products in 25% of
schools, colleges and businesses in the
borough.

CMT reports also now included,
superfluous commentary wording
removed

SLE 1.14
A

Council will continue to support
the principle of fair trade through
member participation in the Fair
trade network and inclusion of
fair-trade aspirations through
procurement. Not prioritised for
proactive officer support given
limited evidence of impact on
Fair-trade on reduced resource
usage.

Agenda Item 4

Page 18

Appendix C
Options for Future Sustainability Service Provision
Four options for future sustainability service provision are outlined below. All options are based on
2014/15 budgets and include removal of Ecoschools budget as this has already been agreed.
1.1 Option A, Streamlined One Planet Sutton Strategy, Delivery and Monitoring Service
Saving £84,700
Remaining Budget £96,000*
Key aim: Team will enable and coordinate development of strategic sustainability projects (focussed
on key environmental impacts), working across the council and with partners to deliver a reduced
action plan.














2 FTE team : Sustainability Manager/Team Leader and Sustainability Officer
The team will continue to drive environmental improvements across the council.
Team will enable and monitor delivery of an environmental sustainability strategy focused on
key environmental impacts covering energy, waste, water, sustainable transport, sustainable
food and Biodiversity only. OPS will still be used as a framework to monitor and drive
sustainability, but the sustainability team will annually monitor a key set of OPS targets.
OPS accreditation would be maintained
Team will commission engagement/communication projects and 1 or 2 key external projects
(dependent upon budget available) e.g. commissioning delivery of environmental champions ,
community renewable energy scheme, home energy efficiency behavioural change schemes,
greening the supply chain
The team will work with other organisations to facilitate delivery of sustainability through
partnership building, seed funding (if available), and bid writing e.g. circular economy, local
food business partnership, delivery of ECO funding in the borough
EMAS accreditation ceased and risks managed by services.
There will be a much reduced capacity for the team to provide advice to other teams in the
borough e.g. assisting procurement team and officers across the council with verification of
environmental requirements in contract procurement
This model requires significant resources from other teams for data gathering and reporting,
any further cuts to these teams will have an impact on the sustainability team’s ability to report
progress; this is especially relevant to council energy, waste and water data.

* This budget does not include the following savings : £9,000 savings to other council teams for
removal of EMAS external audit fee, £7,875 savings to internal audit team for 50% reduction in
staff time spent on environmental risk management via EMAS totalling £16,875)
1.2 Option B, CO2 emissions reduction service
Saving £117,040
Budget £63,330
Key aim: Delivery of borough wide CO2 reduction projects and strategy focusing on non-council
buildings only

Page 19









Agenda Item 4

1 officer facilitates, develops and delivers projects to reduce borough wide CO2 emissions.
The officer identifies and commissions delivery of limited key external energy projects only e.g.
domestic energy efficiency, renewables. Officer provides policy, advice and guidance on noncorporate energy matters only.
Some of team budget is used to commission engagement/communication work and key
energy projects (including seed funding external organisations, bid writing).
No EMAS, or One Planet Sutton accreditation.
No overarching sustainability programme or strategy produced by the officer. Officer does not
maintain a system to ensure compliance with environmental legislation. Council environmental
performance monitoring report produced by internal audit if/when required.
The officer would be best placed to sit within a service with the council energy manager to
form an energy team.

1.3 Option C, Sustainability Strategy and Monitoring Service (council only)
Saving £147,040
Remaining Budget £33,660
Key aim: Delivery of overarching sustainability strategy, policy and performance monitoring for
council, support to other teams in the council







1 officer delivers overarching environmental sustainability strategy and policy for council only
(not communities) and monitors corporate environmental performance. Provides limited advice
and guidance on a range of environmental matters to teams within the council.
No EMAS, ISO14001 or One Planet Sutton accreditation. Team does not maintain a system to
ensure compliance with environmental legislation.
No facilitation, development or delivery of projects to implement environmental improvements
apart from small amount of general staff behaviour change engagement
The officer would be best placed to sit within a service with the chief executive office team
This model requires resource from other teams to gather data and reporting, any further cuts
to these teams will have an impact on the ability of this officer to report progress, and this is
especially true for council energy, waste and water data.

1.4 Option D, Complete Removal of Sustainability Service
Saving £180,700
Budget £0





Sustainability team service ceases to exist. Other teams within the council would continue to
deliver waste, transport and internal energy services.
The council does not have a service with overarching view of sustainability policy, or strategy.
Monitoring of council environmental performance is by internal audit if/when required.
Internal audit and individual teams are responsible to ensure legal compliance of services with
environmental legislation

Page 20

Agenda Item 4

Appendix D
Comparable London Borough Sustainability Services
A survey conducted by the London Environmental Coordinators Forum in May 2014 was completed
by 30 of the 33 London Boroughs. The survey showed that only 6 Boroughs had less than 3 members
of staff in sustainability teams. More than 50% of London Boroughs had more than 3 members of staff
in their team. As all Boroughs’ currently face similar issues on how to save money, this could change
in the near future. A selection of London Borough sustainability teams are provided below for
comparison.
Examples of London Borough Sustainability Teams
Council
Enfield

Team
size
8

Brent

4

Bromley

3

Key areas
- Split into 2 teams :
- Sustainability strategy (Enfield
2020)coordination, reporting and
delivery
- Energy (internal and external)

-

Croydon

3

Richmond

2.5

-

Kingston

2

-

Havering

2

Merton

2

Hackney

1

- Sustainability strategy
coordination, reporting and
delivery
- Communities officer, energy
officer (internal and external )and
data officer
Sustainability strategy,
coordination, reporting and
delivery,
Main focus is energy
Sustainable procurement advice,
Energy (internal and external)
Advice on major projects, planning
and procurement
Energy (external and internal) and
some water
Greening business scheme
Internal promotions
Energy (internal and external)

- Energy (internal and external) and
water ONLY
- one technical officer, one project
and policy officer
- Energy (internal and external)
- Planning advice
- Planning applications and policy
- Some involvement in community
energy but staff working on
domestic energy in other teams

Comments
- No ISO14001 or EMAS, no
legal compliance monitoring
- 50 actions in plan monitored
via covalent
- Energy team pays for itself
via savings on corporate
energy, and CRC which is
ring fenced
- Previously ISO14001 but
since moving to 4 member
team do not have resources

- No ISO14001 but do keep
teams updated on changes
in law

- Line managed by head of
property
- No ISO14001 or EMAS, no
legal compliance monitoring
- No overarching sustainability
monitoring or input by team

Page 21

Agenda Item 4

Appendix E
Eco –Management and Audit Scheme Review
EMAS is an EU accredited environmental management system for continual improvement of
environmental performance and management of environmental risk. It is externally verified and allows
the council to assure legal compliance by delivery teams with environmental legislation. Table 1 sets
out the requirements an organisation must meet in order to become accredited, and how this is
currently delivered in Sutton given the decision to integrate OPS and EMAS. The current process
depends on a full time officer and focuses on processes rather than the sustainability outcomes
achieved.
Table 1: EMAS requirements
EMAS requirement
Corporate Environmental
Policy

Sutton Delivery
This is the council’s One Planet Sutton policy, drafted
by sustainability team

Environmental Review

The sustainability team review and report progress
towards our sustainability targets to the One Planet
Sutton Board.

Action Programme

This includes all projects/schemes/programmes to set
and meet our sustainability targets, and
training/communications.
The sustainability team manages the council’s
environmental legislation register, and supports its use
by other teams to ensure compliance. Legal
compliance across the council is checked by the
internal and external auditors.
This is currently performed by internal audit officers.
24 days a year (previously 45 days) are assigned to
check specific areas.
The auditor will visit teams and review policies and
progress. A report on findings, actions and timescales
is produced with an assurance level. These audits
often review the closure of issues raised by external
auditors in previous visits. The internal audit cost is
recharged centrally to all teams.

Legal Compliance

Internal Audit

Environmental Statement

This is an annual statement on council environmental
performance which is verified by external audit, and is
available to the public. This year the statement was
published as the One Planet Sutton Progress Report.

Verification - by accredited
external organisation

External auditors undertake audits of the council twice
a year. The visits can result in non compliances being
raised which must be resolved within a certain time
period.

Registration - by independent
organisation

Carried out via sustainability team

Agenda Item 4

Page 22

The current cost of EMAS accreditation (including internal audit team) is £67,686 . This does not
include the cost to other teams for officer time spent in audit.
Current Environmental Risk Management System
The Sustainability team pays for annual membership for access to a legal register for environmental
risk. The sustainability team identifies teams responsible for each piece of legislation, and reminds all
relevant teams across the council to review the register every 6 months.
Each year, over 6 days, external auditors scrutinise sustainability records and interview officers in
different teams across the council, this includes examination of council compliance with environmental
policy. Internal audit also carry out spot checks on legal compliance during the year, but does not
ensure all areas are compliant. Any non compliances raised by audits must be resolved as a matter of
urgency to ensure EMAS reaccreditation.
Alternative Risk Management Option
Should the council stop using EMAS, it would need to be satisfied that the council’s environmental
risks were managed sufficiently by other means. The council’s accreditation by Bioregional, as part of
One Planet Sutton, does not include legal compliance or environmental risk reduction.
A review of environmental legislation relevant to the council, and EMAS non-compliances raised by
external auditors over the last 3 years has been undertaken. There were 64 non compliances but the
majority were process based issues e.g. lack of defined methodology for collecting business mileage
data. A small number (33%) were identified as areas which presented risks of financial or reputation
loss. A comparison of the sanctions under environmental legislation and non- compliances revealed
several areas where key risks exist to the council. Key risks identified included waste transfer and
disposal, control of dangerous substances (oil, ozone depleting gases) and water discharge activity.
The teams involved in management of these risks were identified in services managing waste, parks,
facilities management, fleet, environmental health, major projects and programmes, highways, ICT
and planning.
The review findings were discussed with relevant service heads and internal audit, to ensure all
relevant environmental legislation and key risks were assessed in considering an alternative
approach. This established that risk can be monitored by the service provided that the service
integrates responsibility for monitoring of data collection and compliance within existing team
processes.
Higher risk issues will continue to be monitored via spot checks performed by internal audit. This is
estimated to take 10 days per year and the budget for this will be funded as part of internal audit
service plan activities. The approach could evolve over time to ensure most efficient delivery of
environmental risk management is utilised.

Appendix F
Summary of Key OPS and Sustainability Team Priorities to 2017/18
Key Team

Sustainability
Team Role

Potential Sustainability Team projects from
March 2015

Reducing
Council
energy
usage

ZCB1.1: 50% reduction in
CO2 from Council buildings
by 2017, from a 2010/11
baseline.

Asset
management

behavioural
change
promotion

 Internal energy switch off campaigns (£300
per year)
 Examining options for renewable energy

Reducing
Borough
energy
usage

ZCB 1.3: 20% reduction in
borough CO2 emissions by
2017 (from a 2007
baseline).

 CO2 reduction is a
Corporate objective
 long term resource
efficiencies cost
savings by council,
 Service gap - No
other team
promotes energy
savings
 CO2 reduction is a
Corporate
objective, links to
fuel poverty and
money saving for
residents,
 Residents account
for 50% CO2
 Service gap – No
other team focuses
on domestic energy

sustainability

 Delivery of
behavioural
change
projects
 Sourcing
funding
 Delivery of
domestic and
school
energy
projects

 Delivery of environmental
champions/ambassadors project (£12,000)
 Facilitating community energy scheme
(leases, promotion & potential loan) (£600
printing)
 Delivery of new ECO and Green deal
scheme
 Continuation of school behavioural change
energy projects
 Creation of funding bids to deliver energy
strategy

Increasing
council use
of
sustainable
transport

ST1.1: Increase the
percentage of Council staff
commuting by sustainable
transport from a baseline of
42% in 2011, to 52.5%in
2017.
New target: Annual
reduction in council scope
1, and 2 CO2 e emissions.

 Corporate objective
 links to health
 New target is a
government
requirement and
includes CO2
emissions which
are not captured
elsewhere, e.g.
fleet, business
travel.- previously

transport
fleet

monitoring and
reporting

Agenda Item 4

Why Prioritise?

Page 23

Key
OPS Targets
Impact
area
Cutting Carbon Emissions

Agenda Item 4

captured by EMAS

Increasing
Borough
use of
sustainable
transport

Reducing
council
waste

ZW1.1: Reduce waste from
council offices by 38% by
2017.
1.2: 85% of the waste
stream in council offices to
be recycled or composted
by 2017.
New target
Achieve an increase in
number of items of council
office materials reused from
previous year.

 Corporate objective
 links to health
 Required under
education and
inspectors act
 TfL and LIP
requires monitoring
of these target, and
included in council
Sustainable
Transport Strategy

transport
team

monitoring and
reporting

 Corporate objective
 resource
efficiencies and
cost savings

sustainability

 Behavioural
change
promotion
 Delivery of
new internal
systems

Page 24

ST1.3: Increase the
percentage of children
travelling to school by
sustainable transport from
76% (2009) to 80% in
2017.
1.4: Increase the use of
sustainable transport from
a 2009/10 - 2011/12
average baseline of:
1% cycling to 2.2% cycling
28% walking to 29.6%
walking
16% public transport to
17.6% by 2017
New target:
Reduction in NO2 annual
mean concentrations and
annual exceedances, and
Reduction in PM10 annual
mean concentrations
across all monitoring sites.
Cutting Waste

 Corporate behavioural change promotion
 Improve corporate recycling system (£25,000)
 Assist democratic services paper usage
(currently costing £0.5m a year)

Reducing
Borough
waste

 Corporate objective
 aligns with existing
data requirements
from government
single data set.
 resource
efficiencies cost
savings

waste

monitoring and
reporting

 Investigate & procure online reuse system
for council and partners (£7,000 for 5 years)

 Council is moving
to commissioning
model, need to
embed
sustainability in
procurement,
 knock on impact on
ability to reach all
sustainability
targets

Procurement,
sustainability,
commissioni
ng teams

 Facilitate in
embedding
sustainability
into
procurement
processes –
training
provision,
large contract
assistance

 Investigate methods to facilitate sustainable
procurement
 Implementation of sustainable procurement
methods(e.g. training)
 Assistance with contract management (e.g.
Sutton theatres, Leisure centres)

 Statutory
requirement,

Biodiversity

monitoring and
reporting

Page 25

Sustainable
commission
ing and
procureme
nt

ZW1.3: Reduce waste from
households by 5% per
household (equivalent to
3,854 tonnes) by 2017 .
1.4: Increase the household
recycling rate to 40% by
2017.
1.5: Achieve the Mayor of
London's 2017 Emissions
Performance Standard of 0.154 tonnes of CO2
emissions per tonne of
waste managed.
1.9: 4,000 tonnes of Local
Authority collected waste
sent to landfill by 2017.
Relates to all targets
New target:
Achieve an Increase in %
spend by council with
SMEs from previous year.

Valuing our Natural Environment
Protecting
Habitats and
wildlife

 part of
governments
single data set
and high level
stewardship
agreement

Agenda Item 4

NHW 1.1: By 2017,
maintain volunteer
numbers participating in
nature projects through
Sutton Nature
Conservation Volunteers
from a 2011/12 baseline.
(Baseline equates to 600
volunteer days a year).
1.2: 3,000 school children
attending biodiversity
events per year from 2012
onwards (Baseline 2,800
school children attending

New target: Achieve a
year on year saving in
council water usage

Increasing
access to
local food

LSF 1.7: Enable an
increase in people to take
part in growing their own
food locally by 2017

Sustainable
development

New target: Increase the
number of opportunities
for local food producers to
sell local produce in
Sutton by 2017.
NHW1.8 : Ensure that
90% of new dwellings
built each year from 2012-

 Statutory
requirement
 reputational risk
 This is to replace
target SW1.1A.
which has already
been achieved.
 Previously reported
via EMAS
 Resource
efficiencies
cost savings

Highways

 monitoring
and reporting
 Behavioural
change
promotion

Asset
management



Links to health and
wellbeing priorities
 Overarching
strategic targets
 contributes large
percentage of a
person’s CO2
footprint

sustainability

 Behavioural
change
promotion
 Facilitate
projects set
up
 Facilitate and
drive third
sector
delivery of
local
sustainable
food

 knock on impact on
ability to reach

Planning,
construction

 Advising on
individual

Page 26

Reducing
council water
usage

Agenda Item 4

Increasing
flooding
resilience

events in 2011/12).
1.3: Develop and
implement management
plans for Sutton nature
conservation sites. (From
a baseline of 35 sites with
management plans in
2012) to 39 sites in 2017.
1.7: To implement 3 river
improvement projects
identified by the
Environment Agency as
necessary steps to
achieve targets set
through the water
framework directive.
New target: Flood
alleviation schemes
implemented for 3 critical
drainage areas by 2017

 Assisting facilities/asset team with
implementation of water reduction schemes

 Assist external partners with bid writing for
projects e.g. local food brand

13 onwards (including
new build, conversions
and change of use) are
located on previously
developed or ‘Brownfield’
land.
NEW TARGET: Create a
revised suite of
sustainable development
policies for inclusion in the
councils new local plan for
adoption by 2017

sustainability
targets
 Encompasses
previous strategic
planning related
targets for zero
carbon and
sustainable water.

schemes
 assisting with
funding bids

Supporting Healthy Communities
NEW KPI: Number of
annual volunteer hours for
Sutton library and
heritage Services

Healthy
workforce

NEW KPI: Number of
working days per FTE lost
due to sickness
absence (excluding
school staff)

Healthy
residents

New KPI: Utilisation of
outdoor space for
exercise/health

 Overarching
indicator of
progress towards
Supporting healthy
communities
targets
 Overarching
indicator of
progress towards
Supporting healthy
communities
targets
 Overarching
indicator of
progress towards
Supporting healthy
communities
targets

Libraries and
heritage

 Inclusion in
annual report

HR

 Inclusion in
annual report

Public health

 Inclusion in
annual report

 Businesses account
for 30% CO2
emissions
 SDEN is corporate
objective, green
industry is an
emerging area

Area renewal

 Advising on
projects,
 assisting with
funding bids

Page 27

Community
participation

Supporting the Local Economy
SLE 1.7: Facilitate the
creation of new green
industry and renewable
infrastructure in Sutton by
2017.

 Assist in circular economy investigative
work
 If appropriate assist with project delivery

Agenda Item 4

Increasing
Green
industry and
infrastructure

Agenda Item 4

which requires
sustainability
expertise
Local
economy

 Overarching
indicator of
progress towards
supporting the local
economy targets

Economic
renewal

 Inclusion in
annual report

 Overarching
indicator of
progress towards
supporting the local
economy targets

Commissioni
ng support

 Inclusion in
annual report

 Monitoring and
reporting drives
continual
improvement in
performance
 No other service
reports on certain
environmental
issues e.g.
boroughwide CO2

sustainability

 Creation of
overarching
environmenta
l
sustainability
strategy
 Monitoring
and
production of
annual report

 Annual review/summit (£400)
 Creation of internal staff environmental
network
 Corporate building health checks, toolkits
and training
 Assist community groups in writing funding
bids for environmental improvements

Page 28

Overarching
environment
al
improvement

SLE 1.3 :Maintain
economic activity rate
above 80% by 2017
(80.1% as of October
2011 - December 2012).
SLE 1.4 Reduce Job
Seekers Allowance in 1664 to 2.5% by 2017(2.7%
in Jan 2013).
SLE 1.12: Increase the
number of residents
believing that they can
influence council run
services in the area to
50% by 2017 (2011
baseline; 41% ).
Relates to all targets

Page 29

Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 5

Environment and Neighbourhoods
Date: 18 June 2015
Committee
Future Provision of the Neighbourhood Recycling Centres
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Boroughwide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Amy Harris, Waste Strategy and Community Engagement Manager,
020 8770 6389
 An Open Council
 A Green Council
 A Fair Council
 A Smart Council
Open
Date: 2 June 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

The Council has implemented significant improvements over recent years to the kerbside
recycling service which means that residents are now able to recycle mixed dry recyclables at
home. This report therefore considers the options for the future provision of the Neighbourhood
Recycling Centres (NRCs), with a recommendation to remove the mixed recycling banks from
the sites.

2.

Recommendations
The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Remove the Council’s mixed dry recycling banks from all NRCs, retaining the banks for
materials that cannot be recycled at home.

3.

Background

3.1

During the “Smarter Services” review of Sutton’s Waste Management service, the Executive
made the decision to review the provision of NRC’s on an individual basis in areas where
people now have adequate arrangements at their own homes.

3.2

There are 24 NRC’s in Sutton with 16 of these providing mixed dry recycling banks that
residents can use to recycle the same materials that they can recycle at home. At the other 8
NRC sites there are banks for materials that cannot be recycled at home such as textiles,
shoes, books, DVD’s and CD’s. Appendix A provides a map of all NRCs.

3.3

Sutton residents receive a comprehensive recycling service from their home reducing the need
for residents to use NRCs. All households have green bins for mixed dry recycling and blocks of
flats have communal recycling bins. Flats above shops are offered green bins where there is
space and recycling sacks when there is no space available.

4.

Progress on NRC Reviews

4.1

The review process involved surveying NRC users, residents that live in the areas surrounding
the NRC’s, and monitoring complaints and flytipping incidences. The findings were taken to the
relevant local committee who made the final decision about the future provision of a specific

Agenda Item 5

Page 30

NRC. The surveys confirmed that the majority of residents surveyed had mixed dry recycling
facilities at home. Generally the findings showed that the NRC’s:






Were frequently contaminated with materials such as polystyrene, rubble and food waste
Being abused by businesses that are legally required to have their own waste arrangements
Often had bins that were overflowing (due to abuse)
Were used by residents and businesses that do not live in the borough
Were used occasionally by residents to recycle materials they could not recycle from home

4.2

Since 2013, all of the local committees have considered at least one NRC review and taken the
decision to remove the mixed dry recycling banks but to retain the textiles and book banks.
During this period 11 NRC reviews took place and resulted in the removal of mixed dry recycling
banks from 10 NRC’s.

4.3

The Mount NRC is the only site to be reviewed where no changes have been made and this
was subject to further consultation with the residents.

4.4

Where the mixed dry recycling bins have been removed the land has been transformed back
into its former use. Feedback received indicates that there has been an improvement in terms of
the way these sites look.

4.5

At the NRC’s where mixed dry recycling banks were removed there was a reduction in flytipping
incidences from 15 in 2013 to 5 in 2014. However at the remaining NRCs the number of
flytipping incidences increased over the same time period (104 to 142 incidences).

4.6

Whilst the number of NRC’s with facilities for mixed dry recycling has reduced over the last two
years, our recycling rate has remained the same at 37%. Therefore, the provision of mixed dry
recycling bank NRC’s across Sutton has little impact on our recycling rate.

4.7

The banks for materials that cannot be recycled from home continue to be used by local
residents. About 100 tonnes of textiles and shoes and 50 tonnes of books, DVD’s and CD’s
were taken by residents were deposited in these banks and recycled in 2014/15.
Increasing Recycling from Home

4.8

Sutton continues to be committed to becoming greener and managing waste sustainably, with
waste reduction, reuse and recycling continuing to be priority. Last year, we successfully
secured £1.2 million of external funding to help residents recycling more and waste less. As a
result of the funding, those living in flatted properties received reusable flats recycling bags to
help them store recycling in their home and transport the recycling to the communal area.

4.9

Further activity is planned for this year to encourage residents to reduce, reuse and recycle
more throughout 2015/16.
Monitoring of existing sites

4.10 Between 1 March and 8 May 2015, our data has been collected during visits to the existing
sites. A total of 165 visits have taken place during this time and the key findings are:





The mixed dry recycling banks were contaminated during 62% of the visits
There was flytipping present during 95% of the visits
During 49% of the visits the mixed dry recycling bins were overflowing
The Civic Centre NRC was the only site with no issues during the monitoring period.

4.11 The contents of contaminated mixed dry recycling banks have to be sent to landfill and are
therefore not contributing to our recycling rate. Instead the NRC’s are continuing to attract
household and commercial waste both in the bins and as flytipping on the ground.

Page 31

Agenda Item 5

5.

Next Steps

5.1

Each of the Local Committees has reached the same decision for future provision of 10 of the
11 reviewed NRC’s. As a result of the changes to the NRC’s, indications are that flytipping has
reduced, more residents have the sufficient facilities to recycle from their home, our recycling
rate has been maintained and the area previously occupied by bins looks better aesthetically.

5.2

Given the success of the changes made to the NRC’s to date it is proposed that the remaining
mixed dry recycling banks are removed from the NRC’s. It is also proposed to maintain the third
sector banks, which both allow residents to recycle materials they cannot recycle from home
and provides an income for local charities.

5.3

The agreement to a proposal will be supported by a communication campaign to inform
residents of the change in local facility and how they can order additional recycling bins.
Information will also be sent to managing agents and businesses, where appropriate.

5.4

It is proposed that the changes to individual NRC’s are implemented between 1 September and
30 November 2015. The changes to each site will be phased to ensure that any construction
work required to transform the site into its former use takes place on the same day the bins are
removed.

6.

Impacts and Implications

1.1

Financial
The costs associated with communicating the changes made to residents near to 16 NRCs are
estimated to be £7,500.

1.2

The removal of the recycling banks will not incur any costs. However, the transformation of the
area currently used for mixed dry recycling banks to its former use may have financial
implications. This will include installation of parking, removing fences, breaking up concrete and
replacing with grass. The average cost for alterations at the other sites was £1,500. Alterations
to 15 NRC’s would cost therefore around £24,000. Following committee approval further work
will be completed to firm up these costs.

1.3

The total cost is around £31,500.

1.4

There will be cost savings associated with reduced flytipping and a reduction in the number of
bins supplied and needed to be emptied by the green wheeled bin rounds.

6.5
6.6

6.7

6.8

Legal
There are no legal implications with regards to the subject matter of the report.
Communities
Communities near to one of the 15 NRC’s, from which the mixed dry recycling bins will be
removed, would lose a local recycling facility. However, additional recycling capacity (extra or
larger bins) would be supplied to residents on request.
One Planet Sutton
It is unlikely that there would be any impact on the recycling rate through removing the mixed
dry recycling banks as long as residents near to the NRC’s affected are provided with the
capacity they require enabling them to recycle these materials from their homes.
Integrated Impact Assessment
An integrated impact assessment has been completed. It concludes that group affected by the
removal of mixed dry recycling is that of residents that do not have any or enough recycling

Page 32

Agenda Item 5

facilities at home. Mitigation measures will be put in place to provide recycling bins to those that
do not have recycling facilities at home and increase the number of bins where capacity is lower
than required.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix Letter
Appendix A

Title
Neighbourhood Recycling Centres Map

Background Documents
None.
Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 2 June 2015
Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Peter May
Fabiola Hickson

Appendix A

Page 33
Agenda Item 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 35
Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 6

Environment and Neighbourhood
Date: 18 June 2015
Committee
Sutton’s Local Flood Risk Management Strategy – Adoption and
Publication Proposals
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director – Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Borough Wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Davina Millership, Interim Head of Highways and Transport
Tel. 020 8770 6657
A Fair Council – Building safe, strong and healthy communities.
Open
Date: 22 May 2015

1.
1.1

Summary
Sutton Council is a designated Lead Local Flood Authority and is required under the Flood
and Water Management Act to prepare and keep under review a Local Flood Risk
Management Strategy. Through joint working with other sub-regional partners, and following
consultation of the draft Strategy, a final Strategy has been prepared for publication.

1.2

The Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy outlines our priorities and provides a
delivery plan to manage risk over the next six years. Our action plan will feed into the
Environment Agency’s Thames Flood Risk Management Plan (set for publication in 2015).

2.

Recommendations
The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Agree the amended final Local Flood Risk Management Strategy for publication following
recent public consultation.

3.
3.1

Background
Following the severe floods across the UK in 2007, the Government commissioned Sir
Michael Pitt to undertake a review. The outcome of this, ‘Learning Lessons from the 2007
Floods’ outlined the need for changes in the way England adapts to the increased risk of
flooding and the roles different organisations have to deliver this function. The
recommendations made within the review were taken forward to form the Flood Risk
Regulations 2009 (FRR) and the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (FWMA).

3.2

Sutton Council is designated a Lead Local Flood Authority and is required to prepare a Flood
Risk Management Plan and Sutton Council is to develop, maintain, apply and monitor a
strategy for local flood risk management within the borough by December 2015.

3.3

The Environment Agency (EA) is also required to prepare a wider Plan and in order to
prevent duplication invited Sutton to produce an individual plan. The objectives and
subsequent measures and actions developed in the Sutton’s strategy were fed into the EA’s
plan. The EA consulted on the plan between 10 October 2014 and the 31 January 2015 and
had asked that Sutton run our Strategy consultation in parallel with these dates.

Agenda Item 6

Page 36

3.4

It was agreed by Environment and Neighbourhood Committee on the 4 September 2014 to
proceed to consultation and report back to this Committee to agree the final Strategy in time
for publication in December 2015.

4.

Issues
Consultation
Sutton Council’s draft Strategy was open to public consultation from 10 October 2014 to 31
January 2015. All stakeholders were able to review and comment on the objectives and
measures proposed to reduce flood risk associated with surface water, groundwater and
watercourses. A digital version of the full document, along with the Flood Risk Maps, Action
Plan, Strategic Environmental Assessment and Habitats Regulations Assessment, were
made available on the Council’s Citizen Space Consultation Hub. The documents were
accompanied with a survey which allowed consultees to comment on the Strategy.
Additionally, the Risk Management Authorities (RMAs) were contacted and invited to review
and comment on the Strategy. Throughout the consultation’s timeframe, social media was
used to promote the consultation. In addition hardcopies of the Strategy and its appendices
were distributed around the borough’s libraries.

4.1

4.2

In total, 4 consultation responses were received: 3 via the Consultation Hub and 1 from
Sutton Council’s Scrutiny Committee. The responses and how they were taken into account
in the final amended strategy is summarised in Appendix C.

4.3

Additional changes were also made to the draft strategy to update it in light of legislative
changes Flood and Water Management Act.

4.4

Proposed Strategy
The London Boroughs of Sutton, Merton, Croydon, Richmond, Wandsworth and Kingston
have formed the South West London Strategic Flood Group, together with the EA and
Thames Water. The partnership worked together to develop a strategy for the sub region.

4.5

The aim of the Strategy is to work in partnership with local communities, and organisations
responsible for managing flooding, in order to better understand and reduce local flood risk in
Sutton where it is economically, technically, socially, and environmentally feasible to do so.

4.6

To achieve this aim the following key objectives have been identified.
 Improving our understanding and data regarding flooding in Sutton
 Building relationships with other Risk Management Authorities (RMAs) and maximising
joint working
 Encouraging sustainable and holistic approaches to flood risk management
 Reducing the number of homes at risk from flooding
 Supporting local residents to increase their own resilience to flooding.

4.7

4.8

The Strategy contains proposals to prioritise the short, medium and long term actions which
can be taken to better manage the risk of flooding. The Action plan against each objective is
included in Appendix B.
The progress on the Action Plan will be monitored annually by assessing which actions have
been delivered and determining whether there has been any change to in the allocated
priorities. Findings from this monitoring process will be presented to the Sutton Flood Group

Page 37

Agenda Item 6

and the South West London Strategic Flood Group. Progress against the Action Plan will be
reported in an Annual Monitoring Report to Sutton Council’s Scrutiny Committee. The Action
Plan will be reviewed on an annual basis or following a significant and timescales for
delivery. Updates to the Action Plan will be discussed and agreed by the Sutton Flood Risk
Management Team.
4.9

The next step is to publish the Strategy and its associated documents on the Council’s
website by December 2015.

4.10 Strategy will be formally reviewed in 2020, and thereafter every six years (as a minimum).
5
5.1

Options Considered
There are no other options but to publish this strategy following consultation.

6

Impacts and Implications
Financial
Capital grants agreed have been partly utilised to develop this strategy. Future improvements
from these proposals will rely on further Environment Agency (EA) grants and other
partnership schemes to be agreed.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

A provisional capital budget of £120,000 has been allocated in 2015/16 although
confirmation of this is awaited from the EA.
Legal
There are no legal implications at this stage.
One Planet Living
The Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee has agreed to targets proposed by the
One Planet Board for the reduction in floodwater risk from 2013/14 onwards. The current
target for flood is: SW1.1A: by 2017 identify all areas at risk of local flooding. Begin to
implement flood resilience measures, and document number of homes with reduced risk of
flooding.

6.5

Integrated Impact Assessment
An Integrated Impact Assessment has been completed for this reviewing the strategy which
shows that we are meeting our duty to manage flood risk to benefit all users.

6.6

Risk
The EA requires risk assessments to be completed for any proposed schemes to assist in
assessing the cost benefit analysis of funding applications.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A
B
C
D

Title
Flood Risk Maps
Action Plan
Consultation Analysis
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy

Page 38

Agenda Item 6

Background Documents
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (Final) - held by Interim Head of Highways and
Transport

Audit Trail
Version:

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 22 May 15

Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Tony Cooke
David Fellowes/ John
Qualtrough

Page 39
Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 40

Page 41
Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 42

Page 43
Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 44

Page 45
Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 46

London Borough of Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy Action Plan
Version:
1.0
This Action Plan supports theJune
London
2015
Borough of Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (v1.0) July 2014.
Next Review Date:
July 2016
Measure/ Scheme
Objective
Measure
Actions
1 Improve our
1.1 Put a system in place to enable
1.1.1 Download monthly summaries of reported floods from
understanding and
the capture and interrogation of
Contender to a central drive accessible to any teams
data holdings
information regarding historic
considering flood risk.
regarding
flood risk.
mechanisms of
flooding in Sutton.
1.1.2 Explore whether Emergency Planning team can gain
access to Contender.

Delivery
Lead
Sutton LLFA Highways

Partners
Any stakeholders
keeping records;
emergency
planning, parks,
LFB, EA, TfL

Programme
Start
Finish
Review
Status
2014-2015 2020 onwards
Dec-14 Not Started

Priority

Funding
Est. Cost (£)
Less than
£5,000

Source
To be
confirmed

Status
To be
confirmed

Moderate

2014-2015

2014-2015

Dec-14 In Progress

Less than
£5,000

Other
(Internal)

Allocated

Moderate

1.1.3 Review and update Flood Incident Database on a
monthly basis and/or following a major flooding
incident.

Sutton LLFA Thames Water,
Highways /
EA, TfL
Emergency Planning

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

Sutton LLFA

2014-2015

2016-2017

Dec-14 In Progress

2014-2015

2015-2016

Dec-14 Not Started

Area Based
Grant
To be
confirmed

Moderate

Sutton LLFA - Spatial EA, TW
Planning

Less than
£5,000
£6,000 £25,000

Allocated

1.2 Update and utilise existing flood
studies to inform the
understanding of flood risk
across the borough.

1.1.4 Develop a GIS / web-based database for spatial
analysis of flood incidents.
1.2.1 Update Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and include
more detailed surface water and groundwater flood
risk information.
1.2.2 Update Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment.

To be
confirmed

Moderate

Sutton LLFA

EA

2016-2017

2016-2017

Mar-16 Not Started

1.3.1 Create a 'living' list of cross-boundary flood issues;
Sutton LLFA
known and potential.
1.3.2 Contact neighbouring Councils to establish any
Sutton LLFA
management already in place for cross-boundary
issues and joint working opportunities going forward.

Neighbouring
boroughs
Croydon LLFA,
Merton LLFA,
Surrey CC,
Kingston LLFA

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 Not Started

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 In Progress

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed
Area Based
Grant

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed
Allocated

Moderate

1.3 Improve understanding of the
hydrological links between
boroughs and work with
neighbouring LLFAs where
cross-boundary issues exist.

Less than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000

1.4 Improve how flood risk
information is communicated inhouse and influences different
work streams of the Council.

1.4.1 Re-establish internal flood group to meet regularly to
communicate
flood risk issues
and to promote the
1.4.2 Establish
a mechanism
for communicating
information regarding flood risk management to all
departments and members.
1.4.3 Create a clear 'living list' of the funding streams
available to Sutton for flood risk projects for internal
circulation.
1.4.4 Improve understanding of weather warnings and
emergency process between officers and
departments.
1.5.1 Review the surface water flood risk in CDAs using
Environment Agency dataset "Updated Flood Map for
Surface Water".
1.5.2 Review prioritised list of CDAs for further
investigation
produce detailed
a programme
for how and
1.5.3 Seek
fundingand
to complete
investigations
of
remaining Critical Drainage Areas (CDAs).
1.6.1 Obtain Defra Groundwater Emergency mapping and
BGS datasets for SuDS

Sutton LLFA Highways
Sutton
LLFA Internal Flood Group

2014-2015 2020 onwards
2014-2015
2014-2015

Dec-14 Not Started
Dec-14 Not Started

Less than
£5,000
Less
than
£5,000

To be
confirmed
To
be
confirmed

To be
confirmed
To
be
confirmed

Moderate
Moderate

Sutton LLFA EA
Highways / Spatial
Planning
Sutton LLFA Emergency Planning

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

Sutton LLFA Highways

2014-2015

2014-2015

Dec-14 In Progress

Less than
£5,000

Area Based
Grant

Allocated

Moderate

Sutton LLFA Highways
Sutton
LLFA Highways
Sutton LLFA Highways

2014-2015
2014-2015
2014-2015 2018 onwards

Dec-14 In Progress
Dec-14 In Progress

Moderate
Moderate

2014-2015

Dec-14 Not Started

Area Based
GrantBased
Area
Grant
To be
confirmed

Allocated
Allocated

2014-2015

Less than
£5,000
Less
than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

Moderate

1.6.2 Undertake a borough-wide groundwater study to
review geology and potential groundwater flooding
mechanisms in the borough to identify high risk
areas.
1.6.3 Coordinate volunteer groups to identify new spring
heads.
2.1.1 Meet regularly with Thames Water Utilities to identify
areas where sewer flooding impacts surface water
flooding. Circulate information in advance of set
meetings.
2.1.2 Invite RMAs to sit on Steering Group when updating
flood risk documents.
2.1.3 Share findings of LFRMS with EA to inform Flood
Risk Management Plan.
2.2.1 Attend regular (3-monthly) South West London Flood
Group Meetings and report outcomes to Sutton
Internal Flood Group.

Sutton LLFA Highways

2015-2016

2015-2016

Sep-15 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

Wandle Trust

2014-2015

2016-2017

Dec-14 Not Started

2015-2016 2020 onwards

Mar-15 Not Started

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed

Moderate

Sutton LLFA Highways

Less than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000

Sutton LLFA Highways
Sutton LLFA Highways
Sutton LLFA Highways

2015-2016 2020 onwards

Mar-15 Not Started

2014-2015

Sep-15 In Progress

To be
confirmed
Allocated

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 In Progress

To be
confirmed
Area Based
Grant
Area Based
Grant

Moderate

2014-2015

Less than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000

Allocated

Moderate

1.5 Develop and prioritise area-wide
action plans for critical drainage
areas based on Surface Water
Management Plan.

1.6 Gain better understanding of the
threat groundwater poses in
Sutton and its influence on
SuDS and future development.

Moderate
Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Agenda Item 6

2 Build on
2.1 Work with Risk Management
relationships with
Authorities and stakeholders to
Risk Management
maximise partnership working
Authorities and
opportunities to deliver flood
maximise joint
remediation at catchment and
working
local levels.
opportunities for
multiple benefits.
2.2 Continue to support the South
West London Flood Group and
seek opportunities for
collaborative working and
sharing of best practice across
South West London.

Page 47

Sutton LLFA Emergency Planning

Comments

Page 1 of 4

London Borough of Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy Action Plan
Agenda Item 6

Version:
1.0
This Action Plan supports theJune
London
2015
Borough of Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (v1.0) July 2014.
Next Review Date:
July 2016
Measure/ Scheme
Objective
Measure
Actions
1
our
1.1
in place
to enable
3 Improve
Proactively
3.1 Put
Set a
upsystem
a procedure
enabling
the 3.1.1 Plan for required resources required for the LLFA to
understanding and
the capture
and
of
encourage
LLFA
to carry
outinterrogation
their statutory
carry out their statutory consultee responsibiities in
data
holdings
information
regarding
historic
sustainable
consultee role
assessing
terms of major planning applications in Sutton.
regarding and
flood risk. drainage measures in
practices
proposed
mechanisms of
identify
major planning applications.
3.1.2 Upskill members of staff using Environment Agency
flooding in Sutton.
opportunities
for
online training tools.
holistic water
3.1.3 Employ relevant drainage expert to review the
management
drainage element of major planning applications and
across the
inspect construction standards.
Borough.
3.1.4 Carry out LLFA as a statutory consultee dry run.

3.1.5

3.2 Promote SuDS creation through
landscaping schemes for
biodiversity

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.3 Ensure Sustainable water policy
is being implemented effectively
and the water environment
managed holistically.

3.3.1

Delivery
Lead
Sutton LLFA Highways /
Development
Management

Sutton LLFA Highways /
Development
Management
Sutton LLFA Highways /
Development
Management
Identify and implement method to maintain SuDS
Sutton LLFA schemes including maintenance guidance and whole Highways /
life cost plans.
Development
Management
Produce guidance on appropriate SuDS for Sutton.
Sutton LLFA Highways /
Development
Management
Create a 'living list' of features / areas within the
Sutton LLFA borough where SuDS could be introduced during
Highways / Spatial
upcoming regeneration.
Planning /
Development
Management
Promote the use of trees and vegetation that prevent Sutton LLFA rapid runoff and landscaped SuDS to create
Development
increased biodiversity opportunities.
Management
Monitor water reduction objectives through One
Sutton LLFA Planet Sutton Action Plan.
Sustainability

Partners

Funding

Priority

Est. Cost (£)
Less than
£5,000

Source
Status
Defra - SAB Allocated

Moderate

Less than
£5,000
£26,000 £50,000

Defra - SAB Allocated

Moderate

Defra - SAB Allocated

Moderate

Programme
Start
Finish
Review
Status
2014-2015
2014-2015
Dec-14 In Progress

2014-2015

2015-2016

Dec-14 Not Started

2014-2015

2015-2016

Dec-14 Not Started

2014-2015

2014-2015

Dec-14 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

Defra - SAB Allocated

Moderate

2015-2016

2016-2017

Mar-15 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

Defra - SAB Allocated

Moderate

2015-2016

2015-2016

Mar-15 In Progress

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

2015-2016 2020 onwards

Mar-15 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

2015-2016

2016-2017

Jun-15 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

2015-2016

2016-2017

Jun-15 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

Comments

Page 48
Page 2 of 4

London Borough of Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy Action Plan
Version:
1.0
This Action Plan supports theJune
London
2015
Borough of Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (v1.0) July 2014.
Next Review Date:
July 2016
Measure/ Scheme
Objective
Measure
Actions
1
our
1.1
system in place
to enable
4 Improve
Reduce the
4.1 Put
Seeka opportunities
to carry
out
4.1.1 CDA24 Sandy Lane, Cheam: Review findings of
understanding
and
the capture
and works
interrogation
of
number
of homes
flood
alleviation
to reduce
detailed modelling study.
data
holdings at
information
regarding
historic
and businesses
the likelihood
of flooding
in
4.1.2 CDA26 Cedar Road / Brighton Road (Overton
regarding
flood risk.
risk
of flooding.
Sutton.
Grange): Review findings of detailed modelling study.
mechanisms of
flooding in Sutton.
4.1.3 CDA27 Carshalton Beeches: Review findings of
detailed modelling study.
4.1.4 CDA32 London Road, Hackbridge: Review findings of
detailed modelling study.
4.1.5 CDA28 Carshalton Centre: Undertake CDA
Investigation and review options for implementation.

4.3 Ensure council extreme weather
event and flood recovery plans
are kept updated.
5 Support local
residents in
increasing their
own resilience to
flooding.

Partners

Programme
Start
Finish
Review
Status
2014-2015
2014-2015
Dec-14 Not Started

Priority

Funding
Est. Cost (£)
Less than
£5,000
£51,000 £100,000

Source
To be
confirmed
FCRM GiA

Status
To be
confirmed
Allocated

Less than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000
£26,000 £50,000

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed
Local Levy

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed
Allocated

Moderate

Moderate

Detailed modelling completed
March 2014.
Detailed modelling completed
March 2014. FCRM GiA
funding allocated for 2014/15.

2014-2015

2014-2015

Dec-14 Not Started

Sutton LLFA Highways
Sutton LLFA Highways
Sutton LLFA Highways

2014-2015

2014-2015

Dec-14 Not Started

2014-2015

2014-2015

Dec-14 Not Started

2014-2015

2014-2015

Dec-14 Not Started

4.1.6 CDA33 Hackbridge Town: Undertake CDA
Investigation and review options for implementation.

Sutton LLFA Highways

2014-2015

2014-2015

Dec-14 Not Started

£26,000 £50,000

Local Levy

Allocated

Moderate

Local Levy funding granted for
2014/2015.

4.1.7 CDA29 Beddington Gardens: Undertake CDA
Investigation.

Sutton LLFA Highways

2014-2015

2014-2015

Dec-14 In Progress

£26,000 £50,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

4.1.8 CDA23 Trafalgar Avenue / Hamilton Avenue:
Undertake CDA Investigation.

Sutton LLFA Highways

2015-2016

2016-2017

Dec-14 Not Started

£26,000 £50,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

4.1.9 CDA25 York Road: Undertake CDA Investigation.

Sutton LLFA Highways

2015-2016

2016-2017

Dec-14 Not Started

£26,000 £50,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

FCRM GiA bid submitted for
funding 2015/16. Awaiting
outcome.
FCRM GiA bid submitted for
funding 2014/15. No funding at
present.
FCRM GiA bid submitted for
funding 2014/15. No funding at
present.

4.1.10 Review potential for submitting funding applications Sutton LLFA for remaining CDAs (CDA22 Worcester Park; CDA30 Highways
Wallington; CDA31 South Beddington)

2014-2015

2016-2017

Dec-14 In Progress

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

4.2.1 Develop a schedule to monitor funding sources and
changing requirements on a monthly - 2 monthly
basis to ensure opportunities are maximised.

Sutton LLFA Highways

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 In Progress

Less than
£5,000

Area Based
Grant

To be
confirmed

Moderate

4.2.2 Maintain communication with members about
priorities and benefits to residents.
4.2.3 Communicate funding applications across teams or
via internal flood group to ensure maximum targets
are addressed.
4.3.1 Review extreme weather event and flood recovery
plans following significant weather events.

Sutton LLFA Highways
Sutton LLFA Highways

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 In Progress
Dec-14 In Progress

Area Based
Grant
Area Based
Grant

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed

Moderate

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Less than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000

Sutton LLFA Emergency Planning

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 In Progress

Less than
£5,000

Internal
(Other)

To be
confirmed

Moderate

EA

2014-2015 2020 onwards

Dec-14 In Progress

Less than
£5,000

Area Based
Grant

Allocated

Moderate

Croydon LLFA, EA

2015-2016 2020 onwards

Mar-15 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

2015-2016

2015-2016

Dec-15 Not Started
Mar-16 Not Started

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed

Moderate

2016-2017 2020 onwards

Less than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000

2015-16 2020 onwards

Mar-16 Not Started

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Moderate

Less than
£5,000
Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed

Moderate

5.1 Educate residents to understand 5.1.1 Develop the Council’s flood risk management website Sutton LLFA
how they can influence and get
to provide more flood risk advice, establishing a
involved in local flood risk
regular review process to allow for updates.
management.
5.1.2 Encourage establishment of community flood groups Sutton LLFA
and flood wardens by engaging on the benefits.
Sutton LLFA
Sutton LLFA

Neighbouring
boroughs, EA

Sutton LLFA

Sutton LLFA

EA

2015-2016 2020 onwards

Mar-15 Not Started

Sutton LLFA

EA

2015-2016 2020 onwards

Mar-15 Not Started

Moderate
Moderate

Detailed modelling completed
June 2014.
Detailed modelling completed
March 2014.
Local Levy funding granted for
2014/2015.

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Agenda Item 6

5.1.3 Encourage local residents to take on maintenance of
local SuDS features.
5.1.4 Distribute educational materials to encourage
households in flood risk areas to install flood risk
resilience measures.
5.1.5 Where feasible and appropriate, annually take the
Action Plan and an update on progress to Local
Committees (particularly those most affected by
Flood Risk).
5.1.6 Encourage local businesses to set up continuity plans
for extreme weather events.
5.1.7 Encourage residents and businesses to use online
tools available from the Environment Agency and
National Flood Forum to produce risk assessments
and action plans.

Moderate

Comments

Page 49

4.2 Seek funding for further flood
alleviation works.

Delivery
Lead
Sutton LLFA Highways
Sutton LLFA Highways

Page 3 of 4

London Borough of Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy Action Plan
Agenda Item 6

Version:
1.0
This Action Plan supports theJune
London
2015
Borough of Sutton Local Flood Risk Management Strategy (v1.0) July 2014.
Next Review Date:
July 2016
Measure/ Scheme
Objective
Measure
Actions
Lead
1 Improve our
1.1 Put a system in place to enable
5.1.8 Work with key stakeholders (e.g. Age UK) to increase Sutton LLFA
understanding and
the capture and interrogation of
their capacity to provide information to the vulnerable
data holdings
information regarding historic
to increase their resilience.
regarding
flood risk.
5.2 Work
towards public
5.2.1 Timetable of targeted engagement where SuDS
Sutton LLFA
mechanisms of
understanding and acceptance
schemes are planned to educate on the multiple
flooding in Sutton.
of particular areas being
benefits.
designed to provide flood
storage as well as other multiple
benefits when dry.

Delivery
Partners
Voluntary
Organisations
Neighbouring
boroughs, EA

Programme
Start
Finish
Review
Status
2016-2017 2020 onwards
Mar-16 Not Started

2016-2017 2020 onwards

Mar-16 Not Started

Priority

Funding
Est. Cost (£)
Less than
£5,000

Source
To be
confirmed

Status
To be
confirmed

Less than
£5,000

To be
confirmed

To be
confirmed

Comments

Moderate

Moderate

Page 50
Page 4 of 4

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

Appendix C

Local Flood Risk Management Strategy
Consultation Analysis
Following approval from Sutton Council’s Environment and Neighbourhood Committee, the draft Local
Flood Risk Management Strategy (LFRMS) went out to public consultation on the 10th October 2014 and
ran until the 31st January 2015. The LFRMS along with its supporting documents were available on Sutton
Council’s Consultation Hub website where there was an accompanying survey for completion. The
consultation was advertised on the Council’s Flood Risk Management webpage’s along with the use of
social media. Hard copies of the documents were also made available in the Borough’s public libraries
where the consultation was supported by advertisement through the use of posters.
The LFRMS was sent out to the key stakeholders and risk management authorities (the Environment
Agency, Thames Water and Transport for London) for consultation at the same time.
Compared to the 48 responses which were in received in reply to the engagement process ran during the
production of the LFRMS, the consultation only received 3 responses and an additional set of comments
from Sutton Council’s Scrutiny Committee. None of the key stakeholders or risk management authorities
replied. This could have been because they were mostly involved in the workshops through which the
document was produced.
The Consultation Hub responses can be found in Appendix C1 and Sutton Council’s Scrutiny Committee
comments can be found in Appendix C2.

Proposed Changes
Following the consultation, the responses were analysed and it is proposed that the following actions are
carried out:
1. Consultation Hub Question: Could other partners, businesses, developers and agencies do better to
manage flood risk in the LBS? If yes, please elaborate.
Consultation Hub Response: Yes. One key cause of flooding is the paving over of driveways increasing
runoff. This is still a common occurrence in Worcester Park. I have not seen any action to prevent this
despite planning permission being required for any impermeable area 5sqm or bigger.
Proposed Action: Para 3.2.4 provides a link to the LPA’s Local Plan which will set out the Council’s
policies on sustainable drainage. Additionally, objective 3 outlined in Para 4.1.1 talks about
proactively encouraging sustainable practices and indentifying opportunities for holistic water
management which would include the reduction of permeable paving (as well as retro-fitting SuDS).
Therefore it is not seen that an action is required.
2. Scrutiny Committee Comment: Foreword  In setting the context, the foreword doesn’t make
reference to recent winters’ flooding e.g. A217/Belmont Roundabout which would be fresh in
residents’ minds. Refers to significant surface water flooding in Mitcham Junction, which is LB
Merton. It was suggested that Members could be a useful source of info for officers, in respect of
their local knowledge of historical flooding in borough.
Proposed Action: The Mitcham Junction reference will be removed and the 2013/14 winter flooding
will be mentioned in the foreword (interaction of various sources of flooding).
3. Scrutiny Committee Comment: Para 3.2.6  This paragraph contains a non-exhaustive list of Council
owned assets which have a role in flood risk management. It would have been useful to reference
soakaways in this list as it is used to reduce surface water runoff; the soakaway cleansing scheme is

Agenda Item 6

Page 52
Appendix C

referenced in the October 2014 Flood Risk Management report to the Scrutiny Committee as a means
of managing flood risk; and the scheme forms part of the action plan for flood alleviation works.
Proposed Action: Soakaways will be added to the list of Sutton Council maintained assets.
4. Scrutiny Committee Comment: Para 3.3.7  It was noted that whilst this paragraph talks about
insurers’ responsibilities and the Flood Reinsurance Scheme, it does not mention the Council’s
position (if any) about insurance. Officers confirmed that as far as they were aware there was no
Council policy on this.
Proposed Action: The ‘Flood Re’ scheme mentioned in this section has not yet been enacted. This
paragraph will be re-written to ensure that this point is clear. It will also be added that Sutton Council
have no responsibility in terms of insurance.
5. Scrutiny Committee Comment: Para 5.2.1 (page 9)  The committee was concerned that info about
the identification and prioritisation of work at the CDA’s was inconsistent. The strategy explains that
12 CDAs had been identified across Sutton and that 5 areas had been identified as at greatest risk, but
it does not explain how this assessment was made or relate it clearly to the action being taken to
manage this risk at paragraph 5.2.1.
Proposed Action: The 5 CDAs identified as being at greatest risk have been done so based upon the
number of properties at risk of flooding due to surface water and local knowledge. This explanation
will be added to page 9 using the Surface Water Management Plan for a reference. All 5 of the CDAs
have been included in flood mitigation work. As Table 5-1 shows, CDAs 23, 26, 28 and 33 have all had
applications submitted for funding. CDA 22 benefitted from the Environment Agency lead Worcester
Park Flood Alleviation Scheme which Sutton Council did contribute to. Table 5-1 will be edited to
include this.
6. Scrutiny Committee Comment: Para 5.3.3  The committee enquired further into the progress of
the review of the IFG and welcomed the news that officers had a list of potential officers for the
group and planned to hold their meetings to follow on from the quarterly SW London Strategic Flood
Group meetings so that information could be disseminated across the Council. The first meeting was
scheduled for February 2015.
Proposed Action: No action required.
7. Scrutiny Committee Comment: Para 5.3.10  Members were concerned about properties being
publicly listed as having had one or more flood incidents, but were reassured to hear from officers
that reports of properties affected by flooding were not published by the Council.
Proposed Action: No action required.
8. Scrutiny Committee Comment: Para 5.6.8 – 5.7.4  The committee recognises the difficulties arising
from working at a time of financial constraints but would want to see this section provide further
commentary on how and when alternative funding sources would be approached.
Proposed Action: The LFRMS is a strategic, overview document and so specific details on how and
when alternative funding sources should be utilised would be inappropriate. Therefore it is not seen
that an action is required.
9. Scrutiny Committee Comment: Para 7.2.2  The committee welcomed the proposal that it takes
responsibility to consider the Annual Monitoring Report.
Proposed Action: No action required.
10.Scrutiny Committee Comment: General  Following discussion around future public engagement
with the LFRMS, Committee members welcomed the idea of officers taking the Action Plan and an
update on progress to Local Committees (particularly those most affected by Flood Risk). Officers
considered adding this as an action under the measure to 'Educate residents to understand how they
can influence and get involved in local flood risk management.'
Proposed Action: An action will be added to objective 5, measure 5.1 to encompass this comment.

Page 53

Agenda Item 6

Appendix C
APPENDIX C1 – Consultation Hub Responses

What is
your
name?
Provided

What is your email
address?
Provided

Provided

Provided

Are you responding
on behalf of an
organisation?
No
Not Answered
No

To what extent do you agree or disagree that
the strategy has effectively investigated and
displayed the flood risk in the London Borough
of Sutton?
Agree
Neither agree or disagree
Neither agree or disagree
To what extent do you agree or disagree that
the strategy has covered all of the flood risk
management responsibilities?
Neither agree or disagree
Neither agree or disagree
Neither agree or disagree
Do you think it is clear which risk management
authority is responsible for each risk?
Yes

If yes, what is the
name of your
organisation?

What is
your
postcode?
Provided
Provided

If you disagree or strongly disagree, please
state where you feel we could investigate flood
risk further or display the findings better.

If you disagree or strongly disagree, please
state which flood risk management
responsibilities you feel have not been covered
clearly enough.

If no, please use the space below to explain
your answer

No
To what extent do you agree or disagree that
the objectives set out in the strategy best
reflect the priorities set by the Council?
Neither agree or disagree
Neither agree or disagree
Agree

How satisfied or dissatisfied do you feel that
the proposed measures and actions will
achieve the objectives?

Dissatisfied
Neither satisfied or dissatisfied

If you disagree or strongly disagree, please
state which objectives do not best reflect the
priorities set by the Council and why you feel
this way.

If dissatisfied or very dissatisfied, please state
which of the proposed measures and actions
you feel will not achieve the objectives and
please recommend what could be set out
instead.
The strategy is a great start and is a good
definition of the problem but I'm very sceptical
if it will translate in to actions and the physical
work required to reduce the risk.

Page 54

Agenda Item 6

Appendix C

Neither satisfied or dissatisfied
Do you feel that other partners, businesses,
developers and agencies could do better to
manage flood risk in the London Borough of
Sutton?

Yes
No
Yes
To what extent do you agree or disagree that
the strategy successfully integrates with other
flood risk management strategies relevant to
the London Borough of Sutton?
Neither agree or disagree
Neither agree or disagree
Neither agree or disagree
Do you think that
the reviewing
process is
acceptable?
Yes
Yes
Yes

If no, please explain your
response below - If no, what
would you suggest should
trigger a review?

If yes, please elaborate on how you feel that
other partners, businesses, developers and
agencies could do better to manage flood risk
in the London Borough of Sutton.
One key cause of flooding is the paving over of
driveways increasing runoff. This is still a
common occurrence in Worcester Park. I have
not seen any action to prevent this despite
planning permission being required for any
impermeable area 5sqm or bigger.

If you answered the previous question as
disagree or strongly disagree, which other
flood risk management strategies relevant to
the London Borough of Sutton do you feel the
strategy does not integrate well with?

If you have any other comments, including
any concerning the Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA) or the Habitats
Regulations Assessment (HRA) please make
them here.

Page 55
Appendix C

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Item 6

Page 56
Appendix C

APPENDIX C2 – Sutton Council’s Scrutiny Committee Comments

Page /
reference
Foreword

Para
3.2.6.

Para 3.3.7

Page 9 &
Para 5.2.1

Para
5.3.3.

Para
5.3.10
Para 5.6.8
– 5.7.4
Para 7.2.2
General

Comment(s)
In setting the context, the foreword doesn’t make reference to recent winters’
flooding e.g. A217/Belmont Roundabout which would be fresh in residents’ minds.
Refers to significant surface water flooding in Mitcham Junction, which is LB Merton.
It was suggested that Members could be a useful source of info for officers, in respect
of their local knowledge of historical flooding in borough.
This paragraph contains a non-exhaustive list of Council owned assets which have a
role in flood risk management. It would have been useful to reference soakaways in
this list as it is used to reduce surface water runoff; the soakaway cleansing scheme is
referenced in the October 2014 Flood Risk Management report to the Scrutiny
Committee as a means of managing flood risk; and the scheme forms part of the
action plan for flood alleviation works.
It was noted that whilst this paragraph talks about insurers’ responsibilities and the
Flood Reinsurance Scheme, it does not mention the Council’s position (if any) about
insurance. Officers confirmed that as far as they were aware there was no Council
policy on this.
The committee was concerned that info about the identification and prioritisation of
work at the CDA’s was inconsistent. The strategy explains that 12 CDAs had been
identified across Sutton and that 5 areas had been identified as at greatest risk, but it
does not explain how this assessment was made or relate it clearly to the action being
taken to manage this risk at paragraph 5.2.1.
The committee enquired further into the progress of the review of the IFG and
welcomed the news that officers had a list of potential officers for the group and
planned to hold their meetings to follow on from the quarterly SW London Strategic
Flood Group meetings so that information could be disseminated across the Council.
The first meeting was scheduled for February 2015.
Members were concerned about properties being publicly listed as having had one or
more flood incidents, but were reassured to hear from officers that reports of
properties affected by flooding were not published by the Council.
The committee recognises the difficulties arising from working at a time of financial
constraints but would want to see this section provide further commentary on how
and when alternative funding sources would be approached.
The committee welcomed the proposal that it takes responsibility to consider the
Annual Monitoring Report.
Following discussion around future public engagement with the LFRMS, Committee
members welcomed the idea of officers taking the Action Plan and an update on
progress to Local Committees (particularly those most affected by Flood Risk). Officers
considered adding this as an action under the measure to 'Educate residents to
understand how they can influence and get involved in local flood risk management.'

Page 57

Agenda Item 6
Appendix D

London Borough of Sutton
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy
Summary
2014 - 2020

Agenda Item 6

Page 58

Introduction
In response to the severe flooding across large parts of England and Wales in summer 2007, the
Government has enacted the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (‘the Act’) and the Flood
Risk Regulations 2009 giving local authorities new powers to manage local flood risk in a more coordinated way. As a Lead Local Flood Authority our, Sutton Council's, responsibilities relate to
‘local’ flood risk from surface water, groundwater and small rivers, streams and ditches.
We have a legal requirement under the Act to develop, maintain, apply and monitor a Local Flood
Risk Management Strategy (‘the Strategy’) that:


Provides an overview of flood risk management work being undertaken and planned
throughout the Borough,



Explains how partners are working together to reduce flood risk, and,



Clearly sets out which organisations are responsible for different types of flooding in the
Borough to ensure a common understanding of roles, responsibilities and priorities within
the Borough.

The increase in extreme weather conditions, the presence of existing buildings in areas of flood
risk, and limited public funding, means that we cannot prevent all flood incidents happening in the
Borough. However, through the strategy we can
Nationally, around 5.2 million properties
coordinate our services so that flood risk is reduced
are at risk of flooding; 1.4 million are at
and the impact of any flood incidents is minimised.
risk from rivers or the sea, 2.8 million at
The strategy also provides us with an opportunity to
risk from surface water and 1 million
work together with local residents, businesses and
are at risk from both.
stakeholders to minimise risk and prepare for the
(Environment Agency, 2009)
effects of climate change.
This document is a summary of the London Borough of Sutton Strategy, setting out our plan for the
management of local flood risk across the Borough during the period 2014 - 2020.
The full Local Flood Risk Management Strategy is available on our website:
http://www.sutton.gov.uk/info/200487/flood_risk_management/1275/lead_local_flood_authority/4

Development of the Strategy
The Strategy has been developed by us in partnership
with the Environment Agency and Thames Water, as
well as local communities and neighbouring boroughs.
It has been informed by local, regional and national
policy, including the Environment Agency’s National
Strategy for flood and coastal risk management, to
ensure a coordinated approach to flood risk
management within Sutton.
A community engagement exercise was undertaken
between December 2013 and April 2014. The
outcomes from this have been used to shape the
development of the Strategy and future flood risk
management priorities.

Wallington Railway Bridge, July 2007
(Source: www.yourlocalguardian.co.uk)

London Borough of Sutton
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Summary
1

Page 59

Agenda Item 6

The purpose of the Strategy
The aim of the Strategy is to work in partnership with local communities, and organisations
responsible for managing flooding, in order to better understand and reduce local flood risk in
Sutton where it is economically, technically, socially, and environmentally feasible to do so. To
achieve this aim a number of key objectives have been identified.

London Borough of Sutton Local Strategy Objectives
1. Improve our understanding and data holdings regarding mechanisms of flooding in
Sutton,
2. Build on relationships with Risk Management Authorities and maximise joint working
opportunities for multiple benefits,
3. Proactively encourage sustainable practices and identify opportunities for holistic
water management across the Borough,
4. Reduce the number of homes and businesses at risk of flooding, and
5. Support local residents to increase their own resilience to flooding.

How are we working with others?
Several organisations have a role to play in minimising the risk and impact of flooding in the
Borough. The Strategy clarifies the responsibilities of the different organisations involved in flood
risk management including how they work together and what you should expect of them.

Our responsibilities (Sutton Council)
We have a number of roles and responsibilities relating to flood risk management including:


As the Lead Local Flood Authority and a Risk Management Authority – we have legal duties
and powers to investigate significant flooding events, maintain a register of significant flood
risk assets and manage flood risk from ordinary watercourses,



As the Highways Authority – ensuring that highways are drained of surface water and
where necessary maintain all drainage systems,



As an Emergency Responder - along with other organisations, developing emergency plans
and business continuity plans for use during an emergency,



As the Local Planning Authority - to consider
flood risk in the development of the Local Plan,
to be the decision maker on flood risk for
planning application for development and to
undertake a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment to
inform strategic land use planning, and,



As an Asset Owner – as the asset owner for
flood risk assets on our own land, we have
responsibility to manage and maintain these to
ensure they operate as required and do not
increase flood risk.
Flooding on Revell Road, Sutton
(Source: Sutton Council)
London Borough of Sutton
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Summary
2

Agenda Item 6

Page 60

Risk Management Authorities
Aside from ourselves, Risk Management Authorities in Sutton include the Environment Agency, Thames
Water (as the sewerage undertaker), Transport for London and neighbouring Boroughs, where flood risk
crosses administrative boundaries.
The multi-agency South West London Strategic Flood Group has been established and includes
representatives from each of the six boroughs in the area, the Environment Agency and Thames Water. The
Strategy has been developed through this Partnership Group to ensure that a joined up approach is adopted
throughout South West London.

Other flood risk management organisations
There are a number of other relevant organisations that have a key role to play in managing flood risk in the
Borough, e.g. Network Rail and Natural England. These organisations will be involved as required to support
flood alleviation projects, or to provide information, support and input on a project-by-project basis.

Public, businesses and community groups
The public, community groups and businesses also have a role to play in the management of flood risk. The
Strategy highlights that people and properties in known flood risk areas should be prepared for flood
incidents. Anyone who owns land adjoining a watercourse, known as a Riparian Owner, also has certain
responsibilities to ensure the unobstructed flow of water.
Our aim is that the public and local community groups are aware of the flood risks they face, take
action to reduce their vulnerability to flooding, and are actively involved in flood risk management.
To achieve this vision, we will:


Raise awareness of local flood risk and encouraging local communities to take action, and,



Target communities at greatest risk as part of flood studies or development of a flood
alleviation scheme.

Flood risk in the Borough
Our responsibility, and the focus of the Strategy, is the management of ‘local’ flooding. By this we
mean flooding from:


Surface water – this occurs when heavy rainfall cannot be absorbed into the ground or
enter the drainage systems,



Ordinary watercourses – this occurs when
smaller watercourses, such as streams, ditches,
drains, cuts, dykes and sluices cannot hold the
volume of water flowing through them and
overflow their banks onto surrounding land, and,



Groundwater – this occurs when water levels in
the ground rise above surface levels, which is
most likely to occur in areas underlain by
permeable rocks and after seasonal periods of
prolonged rainfall.

However, the most severe flooding is often caused
Hamilton Avenue, July 2007
when different sources of flooding combine. Whilst
(Source: Sutton Council)
developing the Strategy we have considered the impact
of river, sewer and other forms of flooding and we are working in partnership with the Environment
Agency and local water and sewerage companies where there are combined sources of flooding.
Other sources of flooding include:
London Borough of Sutton
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Summary
3

Page 61

Agenda Item 6

Rivers – this occurs when a watercourse cannot cope with the volume of water draining into it and
overflows its banks onto surrounding land. Large (‘Main’) rivers in Sutton include the River
Wandle, Pyl Brook, the East Pyl Brook, and Beverley
Brook,
Sewer – this occurs when surface water or combined
(surface water and foul) sewers are overwhelmed by
heavy rainfall, which exceeds the capacity of the sewer
drainage system, the system becomes blocked by
debris or sediment, and/or the system surcharges due to
high water levels in receiving watercourses, and,
Reservoirs – this occurs when reservoirs, which hold
large volumes of water above ground water, overtop, i.e.
cannot contain the amount of water flowing into them, or
when part of the reservoir fails resulting in a fast release
of water. Russell Hill Reservoir is located just to the
south-east of Sutton in the London Borough of Croydon.

Historic flooding

Surface water sewer outfall into River
Wandle at Hackbridge, Sutton
(Source: Sutton Council)

Historically, Sutton has been affected by flooding from surface water, rivers, groundwater and
sewers, the most significant recent flooding event occurring in the summer of July 2007 when
heavy rainfall caused flooding from surface water, rivers and sewers to combine to impact
properties across the borough, particularly within the areas of Beddington, Hackbridge, Worcester
Park and Wallington.
There have been several reported groundwater flooding incidents in the north west of the Borough,
the majority of these occurring in 2001 which was a particularly wet period. The high groundwater
levels experienced from December 2013 to April 2014 caused the Carshalton Place Canal,
Carshalton Park Canal and Westcroft Canal (tributaries of the River Wandle) to flow for the first
time in over 10-15 years. Although flooding to properties was minimal during this time, work was
required to manage the flows in The Grove and Carshalton Park and to avoid Carshalton High
Street from being flooded.
Major flooding from rivers has not occurred in Sutton since 1968, when extensive flooding occurred
along the banks of the Pyl Brook, East Pyl Brook and the Beverley Brook, in the north west of the
borough.
Historically, sewer flooding has occurred in a number of locations across the Borough, including
Wallington and Worcester Park. Several incidents have occurred where the sewer system has
surcharged during high flows in the Beverley and Pyl
Brooks, resulting in flooding upstream and in
surrounding areas.

Risk of flooding
Sutton is at greatest risk of flooding from surface
water, river and groundwater sources and it is
predicted that this will increase in the future; influenced
by climate change and increasing pressures on
development and housing need. This does not,
however, indicate that the future flood risk from other
sources is insignificant.
Runoff from roads or
impermeable areas and flooding from road gullies were
identified as the main sources of flooding perceived by
local communities.

Surcharging of surface water sewer system at
Wallington Rail Bridge
(Source: www.yourlocalguardian.co.uk)

London Borough of Sutton
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Summary
4

Agenda Item 6

Page 62

Risks from river flooding associated with the
Residential Properties at Risk of Surface
Beverley Brook, Pyl Brook, East Pyl Brook and
Water Flooding in Sutton
River Wandle are relatively well understood and
High Risk
approx. 2,000 Houses
have been managed at a catchment level for
many years by the Environment Agency. These
Medium Risk
approx. 5,200 Houses
risks are mapped and delineated into Flood
Low Risk
approx. 16,300 Houses
Zones, which are available through the
Environment Agency’s website and are used to
Based on Flood Map for Surface Water
guide planning decisions. However, flood risk
(Environment Agency, December 2013)
from local sources is less well understood; these
are typically very localised events which are often difficult to predict and there are few historical
records available to provide supporting evidence. In particular this is the case for flooding from
ordinary watercourses, which is overall considered to be a low risk across the Borough.
Parts of Sutton have a particular susceptibility to surface water and sewer flooding due to the
urbanised nature of the area and the complexity of the sewer system leading to a high potential for
constrictions, blockages and failure. Over recent years, severe surface water flooding has been
experienced across the area causing damage to property and disruption to businesses and
services.
Non-Residential Properties at Risk of Surface
Water Flooding in Sutton
High Risk

approx. 220 Businesses
approx. 40 critical infrastructure*

Medium Risk

approx. 220 Businesses
approx. 65 critical infrastructure*

The most recent information available
from the Environment Agency shows that
areas identified to be particularly
susceptible to surface water flooding
include Carshalton, Trafalgar Avenue,
Worcester Park, Hackbridge and Sutton
Junction.

Flood risk from groundwater is less well
understood within the borough than that
from surface water, rivers or sewers.
Groundwater flooding can be particularly
* Critical infrastructure includes fire, police and ambulances
difficult to predict due to the ‘hidden’
stations, health and education facilities, care homes and
nature of the source of flooding and
electricity substations.
relatively longer period as the water table
Based on Flood Map for Surface Water
rises and emerges, often several days or
(Environment Agency, December 2013)
weeks after heavy rainfall has fallen and
river levels have dropped. Available flood
risk datasets indicate that the north east of the borough, and a band in the centre of the borough in
Wallington and Cheam are predicted to be at greatest risk, where permeable deposits (which
usually consist of sediments such as gravel, sand, silt and clay) associated with the river valley are
located.
Low Risk

approx. 220 Businesses
approx. 140 critical infrastructure*

Sewer flooding is recorded and mapped by Thames Water as the sewerage undertaker in Sutton.
Climate change is anticipated to increase the potential risk from sewer flooding as summer storms
become more intense and winter storms more prolonged. This combination is likely to increase the
pressure on the existing efficiency of sewer systems, thereby reducing their design standard and
leading to more frequent localised flooding incidents. There are a number of known areas
susceptible to surcharging of sewer and drainage systems across the Borough, many of these
where the system discharges into rivers, and the ability to do this can therefore be impacted by
high water levels in the receiving watercourses.

London Borough of Sutton
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Summary
5

Page 63

Agenda Item 6

How will we deliver local flood risk management?
The Strategy sets out how we will deliver the objectives of the Strategy over the next six years. A
number of measures and actions have been identified to achieve this, and these are set out in the
Action Plan that accompanies the Strategy. These will help us to improve our understanding of
flood risk across the Borough and inform the way we reduce this and plan for resilience against the
impacts of climate change.
In delivering flood risk management, we have the opportunity to deliver wider environmental
objectives and requirements, as set out in European Legislation including the Water Framework
Directive. A Strategic Environmental Assessment and a Habitats Regulations Assessment
Screening exercise has been undertaken to inform the Strategy development.

Objective

How we will deliver the objective

Improve our understanding
and data holdings regarding
mechanisms of flooding in
Sutton.

 Put a system in place to enable the capture and interrogation of
information regarding historic flood risk.
 Update and utilise existing flood studies to inform the understanding
of flood risk across the borough.
 Improve understanding of the hydrological links between boroughs
and work with neighbouring LLFAs where cross-boundary issues
exist.
 Improve how flood risk information is communicated in-house and
influences different work streams of the Council.
 Develop and prioritise area-wide action plans for critical drainage
areas based on Surface Water Management Plan.
 Gain better understanding of the threat groundwater poses in Sutton
and its influence on SuDS and future development.

Build on relationships with
Risk Management Authorities
and maximise joint working
opportunities for multiple
benefits.

 Work with Risk Management Authorities and stakeholders to
maximise partnership working opportunities to deliver flood
remediation at catchment and local levels.
 Continue to support the South West London Flood Group and seek
opportunities for collaborative working and sharing of best practice
across South West London.

Proactively encourage
sustainable practices and
identify opportunities for
holistic water management
across the Borough.

 Set up a procedure enabling the LLFA to carry out their statutory
consultee role assessing proposed drainage measures in major
planning applications.
 Promote SuDS creation through landscaping schemes for
biodiversity
 Ensure Sustainable water policy is being implemented effectively
and the water environment managed holistically.

Reduce the number of homes
and businesses at risk of
flooding.

 Seek opportunities to carry out flood alleviation works to reduce the
likelihood of flooding in Sutton.
 Seek funding for further flood alleviation works.
 Ensure council extreme weather event and flood recovery plans are
kept updated.

Support local residents in
increasing their own
resilience to flooding.

 Educate residents to understand how they can influence and get
involved in local flood risk management.
 Work towards public understanding and acceptance of particular
areas being designed to provide flood storage as well as other
multiple benefits when dry.

London Borough of Sutton
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Summary
6

Agenda Item 6

Page 64

How will we prioritise flood risk management actions?
It is not possible to prevent all flooding, and with limited resources and funding it is not possible to
carry out work in every area at risk of flooding. The approach must be proportionate and risk based
and all authorities have to ensure that environmental consequences are taken into account.
Projects are likely to fall under three broad categories:


Schemes with highest eligibility for national funding,



Local priorities with lower eligibility for national funding, and,



Ongoing programmes of work and maintenance schedules.

As our understanding of flood risk improves and evidence is forthcoming specific mitigation
schemes and activities will be developed to address flood risk in those areas at greatest risk,
where funding is available.

How will flood risk management be funded?
To date, flood risk management activities in the Borough have primarily been funded through
central government grants. However, the current economic climate places significant pressures on
these funding sources and in the future there will be greater emphasis on us to fund activities and
schemes from our own or alternative local sources of funding.
Since April 2012, flood risk management projects funded by Government, relate directly to the
number of households protected, damage prevented and other benefits such as the environmental
or business benefits that will be delivered. We are developing our understanding of areas in Sutton
that have the highest eligibility for national funding, and to date have successfully secured funding,
to investigate flood risk in some of the higher risk areas of Cheam, Carshalton, Hackbridge, and
Cedar Road (Sutton), through both national and local sources of funding, including the Drain
London project, administered by the Greater London Authority.
In the future we will need new ways of working to make sure we can successfully reduce the risk of
flooding as well as finding new ways to pay for the improvements. Whilst it may be possible to fully
pay for some projects using available national sources of funding, it is likely they will require a
wider range of funding sources (including contributions from local communities and businesses as
beneficiaries). The Strategy provides detail on the additional funding options that will be considered
in the Borough, including seeking contributions from developers.

What happens next?
The draft Strategy has undergone a period of public consultation, which offered residents,
businesses and risk management stakeholders the opportunity to provide feedback. Following the
public consultation period, we have considered what you have told us and have use it to update
the Strategy, where necessary. We have now adopted the Strategy and use it as the basis for local
flood risk management. The final Strategy has been available on our website as of early 2015.
Although the Strategy is for the period up to 2020, we believe that continued monitoring and review
are essential to ensure that flood risk management is responsive to changes. This is especially
important in the early years when there are expected to be new requirements for sustainable
drainage, changes in funding and design of flood management schemes and improvements in our
knowledge of flood risk across the Borough.
The full Local Flood Risk Management Strategy is available on our website:
http://www.sutton.gov.uk/info/200487/flood_risk_management/1275/lead_local_flood_authority/4

London Borough of Sutton
Local Flood Risk Management Strategy - Summary
7

Page 65
Report to:
Report title:
Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Agenda Item 7

Environment and Neighbourhood
Date: 18 June 2015
Committee
Release of Capital Funding for Highways Maintenance Programme
2015/16 and update on procurement of highways and lighting contracts
Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director – Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Borough Wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Davina Millership, Interim Head of Highways and Transport
Tel. 020 8770 6657
A Fair Council – Building safe, strong and healthy communities, A
Green Council and A Smarter Council.
Open
Date: 22 May 2015

1.
1.1

Summary
The Planned Carriageway and Footway Maintenance Works Programme is drawn up to
address the more important maintenance requirements of roads in the Borough through a
prioritisation process and this report seeks approval to incur capital expenditure for the roll
out of the programme in 2015/16.

1.2

The report also updates on progress regarding the re-procurement of the highways and
street lighting contracts and the basis of the agreed extension of these existing contracts, as
agreed at the January Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee.

2.

Recommendations
The Environment and Neighbourhood Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Agree to incur capital expenditure for the 2015/16 Planned Carriageway and Footway
Maintenance Programmes as outlined in 2012-2016 Capital Programme.

3.
3.1

Background
A planned highway maintenance programme is drawn up each year for carriageways and
footways.

3.2

All carriageways are prioritised using an agreed weighting assessment, which takes account
of:
 the overall condition
 amount of revenue spend per road
 whether they are bus routes/cycle routes
 if there are any other schemes programmed to take place
 usage/location
 Feedback on condition from Councillors/members of the public.

3.3

Within this criterion, carriageways are given slightly higher weightings if they are requested
by members, part of a cycle route, in poor condition or close to a high amenity area.

Agenda Item 7

Page 66

3.4

Maintenance works on footways are prioritised using an equal weighting assessment based
on:
 overall condition,
 whether it is on a bus route
 Proximity to high amenity areas.

3.5

The maintenance programme is sent to all Public Utilities for consultation as required under
the New Roads and Street Works Act (NRSWA) 1991. This allows the Utilities to give notice
of their future planned works and provides an opportunity to co-ordinate works so that they
are given an opportunity to do their works first prior to any work being carried out.

4.

Issues
Considerations when prioritising the Planned Highways Maintenance Works Programme
Condition surveys are the key method of assessing whether a carriageway or footway needs
maintenance. For carriageways, scanning equipment is used to identify structural defects
and visual inspections. Visual inspections by both external surveyors and highway staff are
used to assess the condition of footways.

4.1

4.2

Frequently concerns are raised regarding the condition of footways with officers because of
their poor visual appearance. A concrete slab footway or carriageway may appear
excessively cracked or a black top footway may appear extensively patched, although as
long as they can be maintained free from trip hazards they are safe to use. Given the
financial constraints on planned maintenance works, appearance alone will not justify
replacement of surfacing materials.

4.3

The issue about how long a carriageway or footway was last resurfaced is also not itself a
relevant consideration: the key factors are condition and safety. The life of individual roads
and footways are dependent upon many factors including the original construction depth and
type of materials used, level of usage, level of statutory undertakers/utilities disturbance, tree
roots and age of construction.

4.4

The level of use of the highway plays an important role in prioritising locations for
maintenance, both in terms of maximising the benefit and minimising the risk. The
programme will prioritise locations that carry the highest volume of traffic (pedestrian/traffic)
while considering routes to schools, stations and town centres.

4.5

As part of developing our schedules officers check if there are other council planned
schemes or utility works which may affect the planned maintenance programme. This may
result in maintenance being delayed if there is a clash of works.

4.6

Officers also take into account other planned transport scheme works where the road
resurfacing or footway replacement could enhance the scheme and is needed. This ensures
that there is a joined up approach to highways and transport works.

4.7

Update on extension of existing contracts
It was agreed at the January Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee that the existing
planned and reactive highways maintenance contracts and the street lighting contracts be
extended by a single year to allow for the re-procurement of these contracts.

Page 67

Agenda Item 7

4.8

The contract negotiations included a revision of the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The
agreed KPIs and targets are as set out in Appendix C. The contracts also include a
mechanism which allows recovery of set levels of “low performance” damages from the
Contractor linked to the measurement of these agreed KPIs.

4.9

In the year of extension, Officers will ensure closer scrutiny of the contractors with regards to
their programming of works on site, performance, workmanship and Health and Safety
requirements.

Progress with on the re-procurement of contracts
4.10 Since the Environment and Neighbourhoods committee in January, the Public Procurement
Regulations 2015 and the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015 have
come into force. There have also been published changes to the Specification for Highways
Works by the Department of Transport. Also, whereas the existing contracts primarily
address technical matters, officers are placing much more emphasis on the way in which
works are planned and managed by both the Council and the appointed contractors.
4.11 The above have had an impact on the preparations for tendering, however, officers are
confident that they can achieve the original objective to mobilise all three contracts by April
2016.
5.
5.1

Options Considered.
A variety of planned maintenance methods can be used to carry out the works. In order to
arrive at the most appropriate method, officers undertake a programme of coring to confirm
the existing material type, depth and underlying construction materials. The final decision
regarding the maintenance option could vary from shallow planning and resurfacing to full
depth reconstruction.

5.2

The schedule of carriageways and footways identified for planned maintenance for 2015/16
is shown in Appendix A and B respectively following assessment against the criteria
described in section 4.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial
The capital allocations for planned maintenance in 2015/16 are:
Highways
Footways
Total
£’000s
£’000’s
£’000s
900
500
1,400

6.1

6.2

Over recent years, the Council has set aside capital resources for highways and pavement
works through identification of an ongoing rolling programme. Agreement is needed from the
Environment and Neighbourhood Committee to incur capital expenditure for the Planned
Highways Maintenance Programme so that the schedule of works identified under
Appendices A (Carriageways) and B (Footways) can be undertaken during 2015/16.
Legal

6.3

The Council has a statutory duty as the Highway Authority in accordance with S.41 of The
Highways Act 1980 to maintain the highway in a safe condition for all users. By undertaking

Page 68

Agenda Item 7

this programme of work the Council is meeting its statutory responsibility for maintenance
and investing wisely for the future by minimising ongoing reactive maintenance costs and the
potential liability for claims against it for property damage and personal injury based on
negligence and / or breach of statutory duty.

6.4

6.5

7.

Integrated Impact Assessment
An Integrated Impact Assessment has been completed reviewing planned and reactive
activities to maintain the highway which shows that meeting the Council’s duty to maintain
the Highway benefits all users.
Risk
The failure to fulfil our statutory duty as the Highway Authority would have legal and financial
implications and be potentially harmful to the reputation of the Council. The progress outlined
towards the procurement imperatives reduces the risk of failing to award new highways and
street lighting contracts. The contract extensions ensure that the Council has contractors in
place to deliver on its statutory responsibilities.
Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
Appendix A
Appendix B
Appendix C

Title
Planned Maintenance: Carriageways 2015/16 (draft)
Planned Maintenance: Footways 2015/16 (draft)
Key Performance Indicators for Highways and Lighting Cont

Background Documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 22 May 2015

Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Tony Cooke/ Sue Hogg
John Cheetham

Page 69

Agenda Item 7

Appendix A
Page 1 of 2

Planned Highways Maintenance
List of carriageways to be resurfaced and Investigated / Design in
2015/16
Road to be Investigated and
Designed –.
Revesby Road
Green Wrythe Lane to Peterborough Rd

North Street
Denmark Rd to Nightingale Rd
Collingwood Road
Robinhood Lane to Bushey Road
Green Wrythe Lane
Nightingale Road to Middleton Road

Length

Ward

372m

Wandle Valley

245m

The Wrythe

500m

Sutton Central

1400m

Wandle Valley,The
Wrythe & St. Helier

Road to be Resurfaced.
Redford Avenue

Length

Ward

Mollison Drive to Link Lane

765m

Beddington South

761m

Worcester Park

465m

Belmont

416m

Cheam

456m

St.Helier

224m

Sutton North & South

513m

St. Helier
Wallington North

Longfellow Road
Central Road to Green Lane

The Downsway
Brigton Road to Devonshire Road.

West Drive
West Drive No 53 to Sandy Lane

Green Lane
Furness road to Rosehill Roundabout

Woodside Road
Oakhill Road to Benhill wood Road

Glastonbury Road
Reigate Avenue to Forest Road

Wandle Road

376m

Birchwood Avenue to London Road

Angel Hill

189m

Sutton Common Rd to Angel hill No 73.

Stanley Square.
Stanley Square No. 7 to No.61

155m

Hannibal Way

404m

Stafford Rd to Hannibal way No.2

Kinloss Road

109m

Lindores Rd to St.Benets Grove.

Bernard Road
Park Gate Rd to Lavender Rd.
(Reconstruction started in 2014/15 and
to be completed in 2015/16)

200m

1

Sutton North
Carshalton South &
Clockhouse
Beddington South
St. Helier

Wallington North

Agenda Item 7

Page 70

Appendix A
Road
Tudor Avenue.

Length

London Rd to No. 80 Tudor
Drive.

381m

Ward
Nonsuch.

Downland Close
Longlands Avenue to end of the
road.

61m

Clifton Road
Manor Rd to Bute Rd.
Rookwood Avenue
From Queenswood Avenue
to Ferrers Avenue
Sandhills
From Queen Elizabeth’s
Walk to Croydon Road
Doral Way
From Carshalton Park Road
to End of Road
Tewkesbury Road
From Titchfield Road to
Paisley Road
Tintern Road
From Wrythe Lane to
Waltham Road

342m

Reserve List
Road
Revesby Road

Carshalton South & Clock house
Wallington North

256m

Beddington North

228m

Beddington North

58m

Carshalton Central

122m
St. Helier
371m
St. Helier

Length
372m

Ward
Wandle Valley

245m

The Wrythe

481m

St. Helier

249m

Nonsuch

Green Wrythe Lane to
Peterborough Rd

North Street
Denmark Rd to Nightingale
Rd
Love Lane
From Green Lane to
Gastonbury Road
Moreton Road
From Windsor Road to
Balmoral Road

2

Page 71

Agenda Item 7

Appendix B
Page 1 of 2

Planned Highways Maintenance
List of footways to be reconstructed in 2014/15
Road
AULTONE WAY
FROM GREENWRYTHE LANE TO CULVERS WAY

Length
205m

AULTONE WAY
FROM ANGEL HILL TO AULTONE WAY RBT
WEST H NO 2

AULTONE WAY RBT EAST
FROM AULTONE WAY RBT EAST H NO 18 A TO
AULTONE WAY RBT EAST H NO 18 A

226m
58m

AULTONE WAY
FROM AULTONE WAY RBT EAST H NO 20 TO
GRENNELL ROAD

AULTONE WAY RBT WEST
FROM AULTONE WAY RBT WEST H NO 2 TO
AULTONE WAY RBT WEST H NO 2

AULTONE WAY
FROM AULTONE WAY RBT WEST H NO 15 TO
AULTONE WAY RBT EAST H NO 18A

132m

Ward
The Wrythe.

Sutton North
Sutton North

Sutton North

56m

Sutton North

165m

Sutton North

GORDON ROAD

Carshalton South & Clockhouse

FROM PARK HILL TO GLEBE ROAD

404m

GROSVENOR AVENUE

639m

Carshalton South & Clockhouse

219m

Cheam

425m

Carshalton Central

GLEBE ROAD TO BOUNDARY ROAD

THE DENE
HIGH VIEW TO END OF ROAD

CAMBRIDGE ROAD
FROM BANSTEAD ROAD TO CARSHALTON
ROAD

KAYEMOOR ROAD
FROM FARM ROAD TO WILLIS AVENUE

BARROW AVENUE
FROM KINGS AVENUE TO END OF ROAD

EAST DRIVE
FROM SOUTH RISE TO END OF ROAD.

241m

236m

Sutton South

Carshalton South & Clockhouse

323m

Carshalton South & Clockhouse

229m

Carshalton South & Clockhouse

SOUTH RISE
FROM WOODMANSTERNE ROAD TO END OF
ROAD

Agenda Item 7

Road

Page 72
Length

MARCHMONT ROAD
FROM WOODCOTE ROAD TO BLENHEIM
GARDENS

528m

SANDY HILL ROAD
FROM ONSLOW GARDENS TO SANDY LANE
SOUTH

70m

BENFLEET CLOSE
FROM BENHILL ROAD TO BENFLEET CLOSE H
NO 107 (502.3 M)

503m

Ward
Wallington South

Wallington South

Sutton North

Reserve List
Road
DEREK AVENUE
FROM CROYDON ROAD TO LONDON ROAD

LAKESIDE
FROM LONDON ROAD TO DEREK AVENUE

QUINTON CLOSE.

Length
237m
121m
112m

FROM LAKESIDE TO END OF ROAD.

BERNARD ROAD
FROM PARKGATE ROAD TO WHITEHALL PLACE

202m

PETERBOROUGH ROAD

450m

FROM SHAP CRESCENT TO MIDDLETON ROAD.

Ward
Wallington North
Wallington North

Wallington North
Wallington North
Wandle Valley.

Page 73

Agenda Item 7
Appendix C
Page 1 of 2

Reactive Maintenance Contract - Performance Framework
KPI Description

Target

1

Percentage of registrable activities completed in accordance with
the conditions of an applicable LoPS permit

95

2

Percentage of activities completed in accordance with the Code of
Practice for Safety at Street Works and Road Works

95

3

Percentage of sites cleared of all waste or superfluous materials
within 24 hours of the completion of work

95

4

Percentage of Work Orders completed within specified response
time

75

5

Percentage of Work Order sites visited by Contractor’s supervisors

75

6

Percentage of completed Work Orders found to contain Defects in
workmanship or in Plant and Materials used.

80

7

Percentage of payment applications for completed Work Orders
included in each payment application

75

8

Percentage of payment applications for completed Work Orders
containing correct information in each payment application

70

9

Percentage of recyclable waste sent for recycling

80

Planned Maintenance Contract Extension - Performance Framework
KPI Description
1

2

3
4
5

Target

Percentage of projects completed by the completion date stated
in the instructing Works Order (ICE TV Cl.2(2)(c))
Percentage of projects where all defect rectification, and other
outstanding work, instructed with the Certificate of Substantial
Completion was completed within the Defect Correction Period
(ICE TV Cl.48(2)(b))
Percentage of projects where the accounts submitted by the
Contractor contained no quantitative or arithmetical errors and
were submitted with full supporting documentation (ICE TV
Cl.60(1))
Percentage of projects where Contractor submitted all monthly
statements for that project (ICE TV Cl.60(1))
Percentage of projects where Contractor submitted the final
account for the project no more than three months after the end
1

90

90

85
85
85

Page 74

Agenda Item 7

Appendix C
of the Defect Correction Period for that project (ICE TV Cl.60(4))
6

Percentage of Quarterly Performance and Progress Reports
submitted within the time required. (SHW Cl.175AR.1)

85

7

Percentage of Contractor’s responses to complaints and
requests for information handled promptly (SHW Cl.179AR.3)

90

8

Percentage of projects where the Contractor notified the
Council’s Traffic Manager of the Works, in accordance with s.53
of NRSWA (SHW Cl.176AR.1)

95

SERVICE INFORMATION – Street Lighting Contract

Aspect of Service
Failure to respond to ECO within one hour – above 2 a month.
(See KPI 1)
Number of days to rectify fault exceeds monthly target by more
than 0.5 days - BV215a (See KPI 4)
Failure to carry out night scout in accordance with programme
Failure to give less than one working day’s notice of inability of
required persons to attend programmed meeting
Failure to provide Weekly Summary (See Clause A4.7)
Failure to provide Daily Whereabouts - above 2 a month. (See
Clause A4.8)
Failure to rectify a minor fault within 3 working days – above 5 a
month
Failure to complete a Task Order within stated or agreed time limits
Failure to complete: a Routine Inspection, Cleaning, Bulk Lamp
Changing or an Electrical Testing and Inspection programme

2

Low Service
Damage
£100 per
failure
£500 per
month
£250 per
failure
£100 per
failure
£100 per
failure
£50 per
failure
£20 per
failure
£20 per
failure
£100 per
programme
per month

Page 75

Agenda Item 8

Report to:

Environment and Neighbourhood
Committee

Report title:

Business case for sharing a) Highways and Traffic Management and
b) Regulatory Services with the Royal Borough of Kingston
Mary Morrissey – Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and
Regeneration
Borough-wide
Councillor Jill Whitehead
Matt Clubb, Acting Executive Head of Environmental Commissioning
020 8770 6116

Report from:
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee
Author /Contact
Number(s):

Date: 18 June 2015

Warren Shadbolt, Executive Head of Safer and Stronger Communities
020 8770 0605
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

 A Fair Council
 A Smart Council
Open

Signed:

Date:

4 June 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

This report summarises the business case and the rationale for shared services for highways,
traffic management and regulatory services between Sutton and Kingston and the
reorganisation of these services into an integrated structure.

1.2

The report recommends the implementation of a shared service which will
o
o
o

maintain the current service performance and satisfaction levels
provide a more resilient service model, which is flexible and able to respond to future
changes
achieve savings

1.3

Finally this report will outline potential savings associated with the changes and proposed
timetable for implementation.

2.

Recommendations

That the Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee:
2.1

Agree the business case for sharing services for highways, traffic management and regulatory
services with the Royal Borough of Kingston, subject to the Member agreement in both
Councils.

2.2

Agree the proposed timetable for the implementation as detailed at paragraph 4.13 of this
report.

Page 76

Agenda Item 8

2.3 Delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Environment, Housing and Regeneration to
develop and agree proposals, subject to formal consultation with staff and trade unions.
3.

Background

3.1

Sutton and Kingston have had discussions regarding the potential for a shared service
arrangement for Highways and Regulatory services since 2013. These preliminary discussions
resulted in a strategic business case being approved at Environment & Neighbourhoods
Committee in January 2014. This business case identified the benefits of working in
collaboration in these areas and suggested that a final business case be prepared for
September 2014 which would
o
o
o

Validate the findings of the Strategic Business Case
Develop a road map for the transition and service integration
Design a Target operating model and functional structures.

3.2

As a result of a realignment of their strategic partnering, Kingston explored opportunities with
other London Boroughs around sharing services during 2014. This exploration by Kingston
delayed the progress of the final business case and Sutton sought to re-structure its existing
Highways services with progress being made on this. In early 2015 Kingston informed Sutton of
their intent to continue to pursue shared service arrangements for these services with Sutton. A
Memorandum of Understanding was agreed and a project team re-established.

4.

Issues
Business Case development

4.1

A review of the previously agreed strategic business case has been carried out given the delay
in progressing to the final business case. This review assessed the assumptions and
recommendations made relating to the delivery model and the scope of services.

4.2

In order to review the delivery model, an options appraisal process was carried out to identify a
suitable delivery option for both services within Sutton and Kingston. This process involved the
identification of a number of potential delivery options for these services followed by an
appraisal against a number of evaluation criteria to arrive at a preferred option. The comparison
of models concluded that a shared service provision was the preferred option for both services.

4.3

A review of scope of services was undertaken given that changes to structures have been made
since the strategic business case was agreed. It was concluded that all the services currently
undertaken by both Councils within Regulatory Services (Environmental Health & Trading
Standards) and Highways & Transport (in Kingston this covers Street Services & Traffic
Management & Design) were considered to be in scope. The following areas do not align:
o

o

Regulatory Services – Environmental Health (Residential) is undertaken in Housing in
Kingston but Regulatory Services in Sutton. Street licensing is part of Regulatory
Services in Sutton but within Highways in Kingston
Highways & Transport – Street Cleansing inspection is managed through Highways &
Transport in Kingston but not in Sutton. There is a Shop mobility service in Kingston
but not Sutton.

Page 77
4.4

As part of this scope review, Sutton is proposing the inclusion of the following in order to align
with those services provided by Kingston.
i.
ii.
iii.

4.5

Winter Maintenance (Currently within Waste)
Smarter Travel (currently in Local Place & Engagement)
Sutton’s London Permitting Scheme and Traffic Management Orders (currently in
business support hub)

The performance of the current services within scope differs a) between boroughs b) between
the services c) within the individual services. The option to share these services provides the
opportunity and scope for improvements in order to achieve the shared service objectives. In
order to identify the areas of opportunity for both services the following observations have been
made by the programme team, feedback from workshops and best practice research. These
observations relate to some but not all of the Regulatory Services and Highways & Transport
Services in scope.
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.
vii.
viii.

4.6

Agenda Item 8

Work is of a reactive nature
Managers spend a lot of time on operational activities
Insufficient resources to cover some specialist areas
Contract management is fragmented
IT systems need improvement to aid efficiency
Business support arrangements need to be improved
Responsiveness to customers needs improvement
Income opportunities are restricted by Council policy

Proposal
In order to shape the shared service it is vital that there is a shared vision for all services and
both boroughs. The vision for this shared service arrangement has been identified as;
“To deliver a shared approach to the commissioning of services, including Regulatory Services
and Highways & Transport, in order to achieve savings and promote service resilience while
retaining service quality & customer satisfaction”.
The following objectives for the shared commissioning approach naturally flowing from the
vision and used to evaluate the business case for each group of services:
i.
ii.
iii.

4.7

Achieve financial savings
Maintain the level of customer satisfaction
Ensure service resilience

In any shared service arrangement there is the need for one of the partners to act as the host
organisation. This involves being the employer of all staff in the service and their management
and providing the support services including HR and Finance. The governance of the shared
service (see 4.8) is responsible for joint decision making for the services. Following an analysis
of the benefits identified by each borough with regard to each hosting, it is recommended that
Kingston act as the host for this shared service. Kingston has stability within their Highways and
Traffic Management service, have capacity within HR to support the TUPE transfer of staff and
the transformation and have experience of hosting shared service arrangements. This does not

Agenda Item 8

Page 78

mean that all staff will be re-located to Kingston, a practical approach to the location of staff will
be explored through formal consultation.
4.8

The governance arrangements will support the decision making regarding the shared service.
Whilst the ‘host’ organisation will have employment responsibility for the staff and associated
support all strategic and key operational decisions will be agreed through the structure below.

4.9

As part of this process there is the opportunity to realign functions between the two services, in
order to redefine the split of services between the Highway & Traffic Management functions and
those that are considered to be regulatory and enforcement. This brings functions together and
presents a clear picture of where synergies can be achieved by grouping functions under teams.
An example of this is to include both on and off street enforcement within the Enforcement
service. The proposed functional chart for the shared service can be found at Appendix 1

4.10 A number of potential commissioning models were considered with a number of options as to
where the commissioning and delivery of functions could divide. All of these had a
commissioning focus as part of the model with a separate delivery vehicle. The following Target
Operating Model (TOM) is proposed which aligns with the commissioning model being used by
each of the boroughs where services are commissioned and delivered to meet agreed
outcomes.

Page 79

Agenda Item 8

Target Operating Model

Strategic Core
Environment Commissioners

Commissioning
Against agreed outcomes

Delivery Service
Highways &
Transport

Enforcement

4.11 The proposed TOM will enable the services within both boroughs to respond to opportunities for
improvement identified at 4.5 by providing a resilient shared service which is flexible to adapt to
the needs of its customers. Particular benefits are identified below;
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.

Improved commissioning and stronger contract management
Strengthened senior management arrangements
More responsive and accessible service to customers
More resilient service through more generic working and integration of service teams
Improved working practices / productivity through a common ICT platform and
improved mobile working
Balancing resources across teams to offset existing gaps.

Implementation
4.12 In order to implement the integrated shared service it is proposed that there is the appointment
of an interim Head of the Shared Service from September 2015 for the first year of transition.
This role will lead on the transformation of the services alongside the Heads of Service in the
respective services to ensure continuity in the transitional period. This role will also be
responsible for the delivery of an integrated ICT platform for the boroughs and explore the
potential for further collaboration regarding joint procurement of contracts. The complexity of
the implementation of a front line service may also require existing management resources to
be retained for part of the first year in order that day to day service is maintained while change
is occurring. It is estimated that the cost of implementing this change during the first year will be

Agenda Item 8

Page 80

£270k which will be off set against the savings identified in the first 12 months. This cost will be
shared equally between the boroughs.
4.13 Subject to Committee approval in both boroughs the following indicative timetable is proposed,
with the intention to implement the fully integrated shared service by early 2016.
Activity
Agree business case proposal
Commence formal staff consultation
Finalise Structures and conclude formal
staff consultation
Implement management arrangements
Appoint to structure from existing teams
Complete any external recruitment to posts
Implement service

Date
June 2015
July 2015
September 2015
October – November 2015
December 2015 – January 2016
January 2016 – February 2016
January – April 2016

5.

Options Considered

5.1

A review of delivery models was carried (4.2 of this report) out in order to identify a suitable
delivery option for both services within Sutton and Kingston. The comparison of models
concluded that a shared service provision was the preferred option for both services.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

Total indicative savings of £580k from 2017/18 (Appendix 2) have been identified as a result of
the implementation of a shared service for these services. There is a stepped approach to the
savings identified in the years leading up to 2017/18 as the cost of change needs to be factored
into potential savings. These savings will be shared across both Councils in a proportion to be
agreed as part of the financial model being established.

6.2

The savings are based on the anticipated structure for the shared service, with the potential for
savings arising from improved working practices and additional savings from the addition of
further services becoming part of the shared service managed through the existing
management arrangements. These figures will be finalised once staff consultation has been
completed and the final structure is agreed.

6.3

There is the potential for redundancies as a result of the implementation of the shared
arrangement, these estimated costs have been factored into the profile of savings and will be
shared equally across the two boroughs. Any additional cost of change expenditure, such as the
implementation of a shared ICT platform, will also be equally shared.

6.4

Finance will work with the Environment, Housing and Regeneration directorate to ensure that
the financial fundamentals ascribed to this Shared Service option are regularly monitored and
delivered as envisaged.

Page 81

Agenda Item 8

Legal
6.5

The Councils are local authorities for the purposes of the Local Government Act 1972 and best
value authorities for the purposes of the Local Government Act 1999. The creation of the
Shared Service is to be established by the Councils in exercise of their powers under section 1
of the Local Authority (Goods and Services) Act 1970, sections 111, 112, 113 and 136 of the
Local Government Act 1972, section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999, and section 1 to 8 of
the Localism Act 2011 and all other enabling powers.

6.6

The proposed shared service would also have to satisfy Regulation 12(7) of the Public
Contracts Regulations 2015.

6.7

If Kingston is to host the shared service, then Sutton will have to delegate to Kingston the
relevant statutory duties and functions that covers these services. Prior to the delegation, SLLp
will have to identify the relevant duties and functions that Sutton has under the various
legislation in order to identify whether there are any that cannot be delegated.

6.8

As there will staff transferring under TUPE there will need to be legal advice provided by SLLp.

7

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendices
Appendix 1

Functional Chart

Appendix 2

Proposed savings

Background Documents
Business Case - version dated 08.06.2015
Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 4 June 2015
Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Akin Akintola
Fabiola Hickson

Page 82

Agenda Item 8

Appendix 1 – Functional model
Enforcement Functional Model
Fly Posting

Street Licensing

Food Hygiene
Inspections

Consumer Prot
Complaints

Environmental
Permitting

Littering

River
Enforcement

Primary
Authority

Product safety
Sampling

Air Quality
Manage/Mon

Private Water
Supplies

Street
Enforcement

H&S Accident
Investigations

Bus Advice &
Engagement

OOHs Noise
Pollution

Safer Trader
Scheme

Cross-over
Compliance

Healthy
Catering

Intelligence &
Analysis

Cons Planning
Applications

Abandoned
Vehicles

Planning
Consultations

Criminal
Investigations

Environmental
Protection

Graffiti

Food Plan

Licensing
Consultations

Home
Improvement

Fly-tipping

Food stnd
Inspection

Underage sales

Noise &
Pollution Invest

Street Trading

Project Work

Weights &
Measures

Noise Patrol
Service

Clinical Waste

Legal
proceedings

Range of
Licencesing

DFGs

Stray Dogs

Infectious
Disease Cont

Cons Educ/
Safeguarding

Empty
Properties

Dog Fouling

PSH
Enforcement

Warmer Homes

Land
Contamination

Safeguarding

Coroners
Service (LBS)

Fuel Poverty

Duty of Care
visits

Business
Support

Member
Enquiries

Advice to
Members

Page 83

Agenda Item 8

Highways and Transport Functional Model
Develop/
Manage LIP

Transport
Strategy

CDMC role

Road Safety
Schemes

Term Service
Contracts

Network
Operations

Promote
Sustainability

Development
Control

Site
Supervision

Feasibility
Studies

Crossover
Admin

Permitting

Freight
Movement

Management
SLAs

Sustainable
Travel

Parking
Schemes

Highways
Authority

Structures &
Water ways

Network
Management

Land Surveying

Delivery Maj
Schemes

Design New LIP
Schemes

Highways
Assets

Highways
Structures

Feasibility
Studies

Monitor RTAs

School
Crossing

Term Service
Contracts

Manage Winter
Mtce

Management
SLAs

Flood Water

Sustainable
Travel

Cycle
Instruction

Road safety
Education

Inspection
Services

Planned
Maintenance

S106, 178, 38

Systems
Management

Sustainable
Travel

Instruction to
Contractors

Site
Supervision

Highways
Drainage

TOs

Street Lighting

Permitting

Rights of Way

Reactive Mtce

Emergency call
out

Traffic Authority

Insurance
Claims

Flood water
Management

Land Drainage
Works

Temporary TOs

Instruction to
Contractors

Shopmobility

Business
Support

Member
Enquiries

Advice to
Members

Agenda Item 8

Page 84
Appendix 2 – proposed shared savings

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

£000s

£000s

£000s

Integrated Organisation Structure

(110)

(650)

(650)

Improved Working Practices

-

-

(130)

Total Revenue Savings (Ongoing)

(110)

(650)

(780)

Redundancy

200

50

50

Transition Staff

60

190

-

Pension Transfer Costs

10

-

-

Total One-Off Revenue Costs

270

240

50

ICT Investment (capital)

-

150

150

Total Net Saving

160

(260)

(580)

Saving

One Off Costs

Page 85

Report to:

Agenda Item 9

Report title:

Environment and Neighbourhoods
Committee
Belmont CPZ Review

Report from:

Warren Shadbolt, Executive Head of Safer and Stronger Communities

Ward/Areas affected:

Belmont and Sutton South

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

Councillor Jill Whitehead

Signed:

Date: 18 June 2015

Ian Kershaw, Head of Planning and Performance
020 8649 0684
 A Green Council
Open
Date:

22 May 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

This report reviews the Belmont CPZ one year after the implementation of new hours of
operation and changes to Blue Badge entitlement that brought it into line with similar zones
across London.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

Environment and Neighbourhoods Committee is asked to note the successful implementation of
the controls and agree that no further changes or reviews are necessary for this zone, separate
from any wider review of zones across the Borough.

3.

Background

3.1

At its meeting on the 23 January 2014 the Committee confirmed its previous decision to review
the Belmont CPZ one year after new operational controls were introduced. Changes had been
to reduce the hours of operation and to remove the ability of Blue Badge holders to park other
than in designated bays. This brought the CPZ into line with normal practice for such zones
across London. Changes came into effect in March 2014.

3.2

CPZs are created to manage competing demand for parking and prioritise parking for residents.
The Belmont CPZ was introduced to protect residents from the effects of excessive and
indiscriminate parking from staff and visitors to the Royal Marsden Hospital.

4.

Issues

4.1

The Belmont CPZ was originally established in 2005 and has been reviewed periodically since.
It covers:
 Bicknoller Close, Clifton Avenue, Commonside Close, Cotswold Road, Downs Road,
Furzedown Road and Pelton Avenue.

Page 86

Agenda Item 9

4.2

In line with other schemes residents can apply for permits for their own vehicles and/or
vouchers to permit their visitors to park.

4.3

New hours of operation were introduced from March 2014, reducing the hours when only
permitted vehicles could park from 8am – 6.30pm to 10am – 6pm. Changes were also made to
remove the ability of Blue Badge holders to park other than in designated bays. No adverse
comments have been received since introduction and permit issue remains constant suggesting
the new changes are working well.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

Options were set out through the initial consultation when changes were introduced. No issues
have been raised since introduction of the changes. The Committee is therefore only asked to
review the scheme and confirm there is no need for further review separate from any wider
review of zones across the Borough.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

None.
Legal

6.2

None.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
None

Title

Background Documents
None
Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal
Other Officers:

Date: 21 May 2015
Comments Sought
Yes
Yes
No

Comments checked by
Christine Little
Fiona Thompson

